MRI Technology and Engineering: Principles, Design, and Clinical Applications

Editors

Sajjad Obaid An'ad Jari

Department of Medical Device Engineering Technology, College of Engineering, Future University, Iraq

Hussein Riad Hussein Asr

Department of Medical Device Engineering Technology, College of Engineering, Future University, Iraq

Saleh Jabbar Kamoun Alwan

Department of Medical Device Engineering Technologies, University of Hillah University, Iraq

Anas AbdelHamid AbdelMajeed Ibrahim

Department of Medical Devices Engineering, University of Alkitab, Iraq

Ali Abdul Wahab Karim Hussein

Department of Medical Devices Engineering, University of Alkitab, Iraq

Fatima Assad Kadhim Wais

Department of Biomedical, College of Engineering, University of Thi_qar, Iraq

Bright Sky Publications TM New Delhi Published By: Bright Sky Publications

Bright Sky Publication Office No. 3, 1st Floor, Pocket - H34, SEC-3, Rohini, Delhi, 110085, India

Editors: Sajjad Obaid An'ad Jari, Hussein Riad Hussein Asr, Saleh Jabbar Kamoun Alwan, Anas AbdelHamid AbdelMajeed Ibrahim, Ali Abdul Wahab Karim Hussein and Fatima Assad Kadhim Wais

The author/publisher has attempted to trace and acknowledge the materials reproduced in this publication and apologize if permission and acknowledgements to publish in this form have not been given. If any material has not been acknowledged please write and let us know so that we may rectify it.

© Bright Sky Publications

Edition: 1st

Publication Year: 2025

Pages: 85

Paperback ISBN: 978-93-6233-128-1

E-Book ISBN: 978-93-6233-136-6

DOI: https://doi.org/10.62906/bs.book.425

Price: ₹ 505/-

Contents

S. No.	Chapters	Page Nos.
	Abstract	01-02
1.	Introduction to MRI Technology	03-05
2.	Fundamental Principles of MRI	06-11
3.	MRI System Components	12-16
4.	MRI Imaging Techniques	17-25
5.	Clinical Applications of MRI	26-32
6.	Safety and Quality Assurance in MRI	33-40
7.	Emerging Trends in MRI Technology	41-45
8.	Future Directions in MRI Research	46-49
9.	Conclusion	50
	References	51-85

Abstract

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) is an extensively used, non-invasive imaging technique that offers excellent soft-tissue contrast to examine different tissues and anatomical regions in the body, with applications in morphology, structural integrity and physiological processes. Since its invention in the early 1970s, numerous sophisticated concepts, techniques and equipment aimed at improving the quality of magnetic resonance (MR) images have been developed in order to increase the spatial resolution, reduce acquisition time and increase sensitivity. The complexity and interdisciplinary nature of these concepts, nevertheless, make it difficult to fully understand MRI. This book therefore offers an educational resource analysing a wide range of MRI concepts, throughout sections on fundamental physics and engineering, pulse sequences, imaging and spectroscopy, different image reconstruction approaches, imaging artefacts and emerging applications.

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) has been used for clinical research and diagnosis for several decades to obtain high-resolution, highly sensitive images of the body in a three-dimensional, non-invasive and non-ionising manner. The application of nanotechnology to the medical field allows medical imaging to be improved by enhancing detection sensitivity through high selectivity or functional detection, or by integrating therapeutic and diagnostic possibilities into combined platforms. Molecular imaging, an interdisciplinary field that combines nanotechnology and imaging, has rapidly advanced to become a key multidisciplinary area of study in biomedicine. To ensure the use of effective functional and biomimetic materials for molecular imaging purposes, a deep understanding of both signal generation and contrast mechanisms is required. For practicability reasons, it is valuable to review the principles of the main imaging techniques and the origin of contrast for each one. While techniques such as positron-emission tomography or optical imaging employ probes that generate a signal proportional to their concentration and characteristics, Xray computed tomography is dependent on the energy absorption of the different tissue structures. MRI is a multimodal technique that presents a more complex relationship between signals and tissue properties, which enables the acquisition of multiple image contrasts. The origin of MRI signals and contrast is therefore reviewed, with an exploration of relaxometry and contrast agents to provide a comprehensive introduction that facilitates an improved understanding of the potential of MRI for molecular imaging.

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) has been widely used for clinical diagnosis and research because it can non-invasively acquire contrast-rich images of the human body at a high spatial resolution and high sensitivity. Since the introduction of the first consistent formalism of MRI, a myriad of acquisition schemes have been developed to meet the increasing requirements for higher image quality and accuracy. Various open-source resources have been created to enable the independent exploration of MRI, although most of these targets a specific aspect or application of MRI. Consequently, students who are undertaking research into MRI need to locate and study an extensive volume of individual teaching material (primarily lecture notes and scholarly articles) in order to learn about the many different aspects of MRI. As a consequence, a general introduction to MRI concepts has been provisionally developed that is aimed at supporting self-directed study. This introductory work represents a complementary resource for readers who already hold a general understanding of the fundamental principals of the technique and who seek to develop their knowledge of the essential concepts of MRI.

Chapter - 1

Introduction to MRI Technology

In the realm of magnetic resonance imaging (MRI), there exists a fundamental concept that intricately revolves around the measurement process and the sophisticated technological engineering that is essential to perform this complex task efficiently. The essential associated steps of this elaborate procedure are meticulously explained, emphasizing that the most significant aspect is the clever and precise control of qubits, which are the quantum bits responsible for the critical work of encoding vital information crucial for imaging. These qubits undergo careful preparation, following specific protocols that align with the desired outcomes of the signal output. This preparation is particularly pertinent in the context of a spin echo signal, which plays an indispensable role in ensuring that high-quality imaging results are achieved consistently. Once the qubits have been prepared, the data is meticulously measured with utmost accuracy. Following measurement, the data is systematically accumulated and subsequently organized into a k-space matrix. This matrix serves as a robust framework for managing and structuring the acquired information in a coherent manner. After organizing the data into the k-space matrix, the next vital step encompasses a mathematical transformation of the data itself-most frequently executed through the application of a Fourier transform, a sophisticated mathematical technique that facilitates the conversion of data from the frequency domain into the spatial domain. The transformation process is fundamental as it ultimately leads to the production of a final image, thereby allowing for an enhanced and detailed visualization of intricate internal structures within the subject being imaged. The core principles that underpin this complex imaging process are successively clarified through detailed explanations, with increasing sophistication being introduced progressively. Critical developments and advancements along the way are diligently highlighted to provide a comprehensive understanding. The fundamental concepts, with the pivotal focus on one-qubit quantum computing, are explored thoroughly, allowing for an in-depth examination of their significance. Moreover, the narrative delves into the most intriguing and groundbreaking discoveries emerging within the field of quantum imaging technology. For instance, it discusses the innovative application of entangled photons, a fascinating concept that can significantly enhance measurement accuracy and which play a key role in the determination of fundamental constants in the realm of physics. These advancements not only represent milestones in the field but also pave the way for future improvements and a plethora of applications in medical imaging as well as in various scientific disciplines that rely on precise measurement techniques [1, 2, 3, 4, 5, 6, 7]

After the signal acquisition process has been meticulously and thoroughly completed, the subsequent emphasis naturally shifts to the intricate and advanced hardware engineering required for the effective management and precise control of the various gradient coils that are fundamentally involved in the imaging process. This engineering aspect is absolutely essential and critical to ensure that there is a consistent and reliable evolution of the spin phase throughout the entirety of the scanned space and volume. Additionally, this careful and methodical engineering plays a crucial role in compensating for any intrinsic inhomogeneity of the magnetic field that may be present during the imaging procedure, which can significantly impact the quality of the images obtained. Once the complex sophisticated k-space filling process has been successfully accomplished, we then move on to the critical, important, and significant step of transforming the acquired data into a meaningful, visually interpretable image. This transformation involves the intricate and elaborate process known as image reconstruction, which is fundamentally essential in order to obtain clear, high-quality visual representations of the scanned areas that clinicians and radiologists rely on for accurate diagnosis and evaluation of conditions. Following this detailed reconstruction step, several different image enhancements are employed strategically and thoughtfully in order to significantly improve the overall quality and diagnostic utility of the resulting images. A detailed and comprehensive rationale for the implementation of any form of tissue differentiation enhancement, or for increasing the signal-to-noise ratio (SNR), is thoroughly examined, analyzed, and discussed in this specific context. Furthermore, the use of contrast agents can prove to be quite advantageous and beneficial in supporting the differentiation enhancement techniques, effectively helping to delineate various tissues with much greater clarity, detail, and precision. Concurrently, there is ongoing and rigorous research and investigation aimed at the development of innovative low-temperature, ultrahigh-magnetic-field scanners. The targeted objective of this cutting-edge research is to achieve an even greater increase in SNR, which in turn will further refine and enhance the imaging outcomes in clinical settings, ultimately enhancing and improving the diagnostic capabilities offered by advanced medical imaging technologies $^{[8, 9, 10, 11, 12, 13]}$.

Chapter - 2

Fundamental Principles of MRI

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) stands as a remarkably versatile and highly prevalent modality employed across diverse clinical environments as well as extensive research frameworks. Despite its widespread adoption and significant clinical relevance, the necessity for comprehensive training persists as a compulsory requirement for those practitioners who aspire to navigate the complexities of technological advancements or contribute to scientific innovations in the field. When a patient enters the sophisticated realm of the magnetic resonance (MR) environment, they encounter a central superconducting magnet that plays a pivotal role in generating a static magnetic field (B0). This magnetic field typically varies in strength, ranging from a modest 0.5 teslas (T) to an impressive maximum of 7 T, which signifies its classification as an "ultra-high field" magnet when it stretches to these elevated levels. The primary magnetic unit is enveloped within a meticulously engineered system comprising an array of advanced superconducting and resistive coils. These coils are artfully designed not only to facilitate the critical process of RF excitation and signal reception but also to enable complex field shaping. Furthermore, an essential aspect of this setup includes the necessary radiofrequency (RF) and gradient electronics that collectively support all these intricate functionalities. The static field (B0) magnet produces a noteworthy surface blockade, which plays a vital role in preserving the integrity of the static field; in the realm of RF systems, these components are frequently classified based on their 'transmit and receive channels' that characterize the intricate coordination of numerous indispensable operational tasks. Meanwhile, gradient systems are especially crucial as they significantly contribute to the position encoding of the subject or object under thorough investigation during the imaging process. Each of the accompanying electronic components and multifaceted systems is adeptly governed by a highly integrated computer system, which efficiently manages and safeguards the data acquired through imaging in a wellstructured digital format, meticulously prepared for subsequent analysis and review. This comprehensive and tightly integrated methodology exemplifies the groundbreaking technology that underpins contemporary MRI practices, elevating both its effectiveness and its transformative potential in the diagnostic imaging landscape [14, 15, 16, 17, 18, 19, 20, 21].

2.1 Magnetic resonance fundamentals

Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI) is an advanced, highly sophisticated, and cutting-edge diagnostic technique that effectively leverages and exploits the intricate principles of nuclear magnetic resonance (NMR) in order to acquire a vast array of incredibly detailed and highresolution images that depict soft tissues found within the human body. This includes critical areas such as the brain, various types of muscles, and the presence and characterization of tumors and other pathological conditions. In a typical clinical MRI scanner, the hydrogen nuclei, which are found abundantly in these soft tissues, are subjected to a powerful static magnetic field that is strategically oriented along the bore of the MRI instrument. Due to the influence of this powerful magnetic field, the hydrogen nuclei align themselves either parallel or anti-parallel to the direction of the field. This results in the creation of a net magnetization that is determined by the Boltzmann distribution, which scientifically describes the distribution of energy states among particles when they are at thermal equilibrium under these conditions. Additionally, weaker magnetic fields are generated by specialized gradient coils, which are superimposed on the principal magnetic field along three orthogonal axes. This innovative and carefully designed architecture significantly enhances spatially selective imaging capabilities and enables effective slice selection in a variety of orientations, specifically allowing for orientations in the axial, coronal, or sagittal planes based on the specific clinical requirements and indications at hand. To generate excitation pulses crucial for the imaging process, radio-frequency (RF) coils are employed, which not only uniquely produce these essential pulses but also play a vital role in detecting the ensuing signals that emerge from the hydrogen nuclei during the imaging process. These signals are then systematically processed using advanced algorithms that are specially designed to reconstruct high-quality images that are clinically relevant and diagnostically valuable. In order to produce measurable NMR signals, the magnetization of the abundant hydrogen nuclei is tipped away carefully from the z-axis by an RF pulse that is strategically applied at an angle perpendicular to the main magnetic field, thus facilitating the entire intricate and remarkably fine-tuned process of MRI imaging. This comprehensive approach ensures that the resulting images provide invaluable insights into the internal structures of the body, aiding in diagnosis and treatment planning [22, 14, 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30].

2.2 Spin and Relaxation Mechanisms

The utilization of the extraordinary and intricate phenomenon of nuclear magnetic resonance in the specialized field of clinical medical imaging has undeniably transformed and revolutionized the overall practice of diagnostic medicine over the last three remarkable decades. The foundational principle behind obtaining the essential signals needed for magnetic resonance imaging, commonly referred to as MRI, was established not long after the groundbreaking original discovery of nuclear magnetic resonance. This remarkable advancement in technology and methodology has significantly enhanced our ability to visualize and diagnose an extensive range of medical conditions effectively and with unprecedented clarity. As a result, healthcare professionals can now detect and treat various ailments with far greater accuracy and swiftness than ever before. Furthermore, the introduction and refinement of MRI technology have opened new avenues for research and development in medical imaging, paving the way for innovations that continue to evolve. As we look to the future, it is exciting to consider how these advancements will further enhance the effectiveness of clinical diagnostics and patient care, leading to improved health outcomes for numerous individuals. Consequently, nuclear magnetic resonance stands as a testament to the ongoing commitment of the medical community to leverage cutting-edge technology in the pursuit of better health for all [31, 32, 33, 34, 35, 36, 37]

MR imaging is fundamentally based on the fascinating and intriguing phenomenon known as nuclear magnetic resonance (NMR). Nuclei that exhibit a nonzero magnetic moment, such as isotopes including 1H, 2H, 13C, 19F, 31P, and 129Xe, when exposed to an external magnetic field, possess the remarkable ability to absorb electromagnetic energy at a very specific radio frequency. This unique and significant interaction is precisely what enables us to generate detailed and intricate images of the internal structures within the human body. Spinal MRI, which serves as a specialized subset of magnetic resonance imaging, plays an essential and crucial role in the diagnosis and thorough evaluation of a wide range of conditions that can affect the spine. Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) is widely recognized as one of the most significant and impactful medical imaging technologies currently in use throughout the medical field today. The foundational principle of nuclear magnetic resonance (NMR) was established back in the pivotal year of 1945. Shortly after this groundbreaking breakthrough, a novel method was proposed that enabled the spatial localization of NMR signals, which relies on the resonant absorption of radio-frequency (RF) energy. This absorption occurs when magnetic resonance phenomena interact in very specific and distinct ways, allowing for more precise imaging applications [38, 23, 39, 40, 41, 24, 25]

2.3 Signal Acquisition and Processing

Concurrent Excitation and Acquisition (CEA) MRI introduces an innovative and advanced method for the detection of the magnetic resonance (MR) signal throughout the specific radio-frequency (RF) excitation period. This pioneering technique enables the impressive capability of conducting simultaneous RF transmission and signal reception all while ensuring there is no disruption to either process. By employing this sophisticated approach, the overall imaging process becomes markedly more efficient and streamlined. Additionally, the quality of the resultant images is significantly enhanced, offering greater clarity and detail which are crucial for accurate diagnostics. Within this framework, the transmit array system serves an extremely important function. It plays a vital role in automating the intricate process of active analog cancellation. This automation leads to a considerable reduction in the waiting time that is generally required for image acquisitions, particularly when dealing with imaging sequences that are characterized by short repetition times. Consequently, the efficiency of the imaging sequence undergoes substantial improvement. Moreover, the possibility of continuous excitation over multiple repetition intervals is indeed realizable through the strategic use of a suitable comb filter within the analog domain. This innovative application allows for sustained and efficient imaging without interruptions. Nevertheless, it is crucial to acknowledge the bandwidth limitations that are inherent to the cancellation hardware. These constraints may impose certain limitations on bandwidth-intensive sequences, which could ultimately affect the overall performance in certain specialized applications. Understanding these nuances is essential for optimizing the use of CEA MRI in various clinical and research settings [42, 43, 44, 45, 46, 47, 27, 48, 49, 50]

The large-scale receive array configuration utilized in CEA systems typically comprises a distinct analog cancellation circuit assigned to each individual channel. However, the presence of inter-coil and cable couplings introduces considerable complexity, making it exceedingly difficult to simply designate a single phase and amplitude scale for every channel, as is commonly done in a singular coil setup. In fact, the complexity arises from the intricate and multifaceted interactions among the various components of the system as they come together to perform their distinct functions. To address these challenges effectively and enhance the overall system

performance, it is vital to extend the automated feedback decoupling process not just limited to one but to multiple receive elements. This extension provides a significantly more advanced and robust solution. By systematically handling the complex interactions and compensating for the variances across the many channels, this method helps to greatly enhance the overall performance of the array configuration. Moreover, the elimination of auditory noise through the advanced CEA process leads to a notable and substantial increase in patient comfort, which in turn facilitates the possibility of prolonged acquisitions and improved communication between the medical personnel and the patient undergoing the procedure. While passive noise protection methods such as the use of earplugs can serve to reduce overall unpleasantness during the procedure to some extent, they ultimately fall short in effectively addressing the low-frequency components of peak magnetic resonance sounds. These specific sounds can be particularly jarring and uncomfortable for patients, as earplugs do not fully eliminate the bone-conducted acoustic noise that can further detract from a positive patient experience during examinations. In addition to improving comfort and the quality of communication during these procedures, suppressing acoustic noise also has the beneficial effect of significantly reducing eddy currents, which are induced by the rapid switching of gradients. These eddy currents can cause significant image artifacts and lead to distorted line shapes during spectroscopy, which can negatively impact diagnostic accuracy and the quality of imaging results. Therefore, a comprehensive approach to noise management thus not only enhances patient comfort and well-being but also preserves the integrity and reliability of the imaging process itself. By ensuring the delivery of high-quality results, this comprehensive approach proves essential for effective diagnosis and subsequent treatment of patients, ultimately enhancing the overall effectiveness of the imaging experience [51, 52, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57].

Dynamic analog cancellation is a highly sophisticated and advanced technique that greatly facilitates the precise detection of MR signals that are specifically originating from ultrashort-T2* species during the intricate and complex process of free precession. The method that is commonly known as CEA plays a pivotal and essential role in significantly enhancing the ability to render the signals that emanate from these particular ultrashort-T2* species more detectable than ever before, achieving unprecedented levels of clarity and resolution. This remarkable enhancement not only improves signal clarity, but also opens the door to a plethora of novel imaging applications that were previously not feasible or possible. These groundbreaking applications include highly detailed assessments of the lung

parenchyma at increasingly high magnetic field strengths of 3 T and even beyond, as well as the reliable and accurate measurement of protein content without the traditional and often cumbersome need for magnetization transfer techniques. However, it is crucial to acknowledge and recognize that, despite these advanced capabilities showing great promise for the future, they currently exceed the limitations that are set by the existing prototype technology in use today, which poses significant challenges for further development and application [58, 59, 60, 61, 62, 63].

Chapter - 3

MRI System Components

The development history of magnetic resonance (MR) prototype systems greatly reflects the intricate evolution of the basic principles that have been instrumental in the formulation of effective system design and engineering aimed at achieving optimal imaging performance. Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) was first introduced in humans by the pioneering researcher Damadian, who utilized a single coil when the concept first emerged. This innovative approach deviated from the magnetic field gradient originally proposed as a promising candidate for tomographic imaging of living subjects, showcasing the adaptability and potential of MRI technology from its inception stage. The journey of system development typically begins with the creation of prototype systems that usually incorporate essential components such as Faraday RF coils, intricate timing circuits designed for three orthogonal gradient fields, and diverse types of polarizing magnets. These magnets are required to maintain a uniformity greater than 10 ppm within the space of a sphere measuring 10 cm in diameter for the relatively low magnetic strength of 0.16 T. It is crucial that the system design principles for even these early prototype systems are straightforward and well-defined in order to optimize the best architecture that can effectively accommodate various functional units, each tailored for specific objectives and applications within the MR spectrum. In contemporary practice, highperformance clinical MR systems have seamlessly integrated advanced technologies across all fundamental functional blocks. These include single or multi-channel RF coils, ultra-shielded superconducting high-field magnets, and high-power shielded gradient coils. These components work in harmony to facilitate multi-nuclear spectroscopy and rapid three-dimensional MRI, achieved through the effective utilization of electric power amplification of the gradient magnetic field. With the advancement and integration of these key technologies-specifically the superconductive highfield magnet, the shielded gradient coil, and the multi-channel phased array coil-whose development has occurred over the first 20 years, MRI has secured its position as a stable, reliable, and continuously evolving technology by the turn of the last century. To further enhance the performance capabilities of imaging, the application of ultra-high fields, in conjunction with high-density phased array coils, has gained prominence. The hybridization of MRI systems with other medical instruments, such as Positron Emission Tomography (PET) or radiation therapy, plays a significant role in enabling a much higher signal-to-noise ratio (SNR) for image formation. This SNR is undeniably the most essential component for all MR-based technologies, including but not limited to imaging, spectroscopy, diffusion studies, flow imaging, or chemical exchange saturation transfer (CEST). Such advancements pave the way for a future where MRI technology can continually adapt and improve, delivering unprecedented insights and applications in the medical field [64, 65, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70].

3.1 Magnet Design and Function

The static magnetic field B0 represents one of the three crucial electromagnetic fields that are employed to generate highly detailed magnetic resonance images (MRI). This field plays a vital role as it aligns the hydrogen nuclei found in bodily tissues, which ultimately results in the production of net nuclear magnetization. In the process of achieving this nuclear alignment, a radio-frequency field, which is referred to as B1, oscillates at the hydrogen Larmor frequency; it is specifically utilized to excite the hydrogen nuclei into a state of precession around the B0 field. The resultant transverse magnetization then generates a voltage in an electrically resonant coil, which is subsequently transduced into a usable MRI signal that can be analyzed for diagnostic purposes. In order to achieve spatial encoding of the MRI signal and create an accurately detailed volumetric dataset, a third gradient field, which is known as B2, is activated and deactivated through the utilization of electromagnetic coils. This action leads to the creation of an additional static magnetic field gradient that is essential for the imaging process to occur effectively. The generation of the static magnetic field itself is accomplished through a carefully designed magnet assembly, which is fundamentally important to MRI technology as a whole, ensuring that all emitted signals are clear and precise for reliable data interpretation and medical diagnostics [71, 22, 72, 73, 23, 74, 38, 75].

3.2 Radiofrequency (RF) Coil Design

MRI hardware comprises several essential components that can be conveniently classified into three primary systems: the main magnet, the gradient system, and the radiofrequency (RF) systems. The main magnet is fundamentally responsible for maintaining a dominant and stable magnetic

field, known as B0, which is crucial for the proper functioning of the MRI machine. This magnetic field is necessary not only for imaging but also for ensuring that the MRI operates efficiently and accurately. The gradient system plays an absolutely pivotal role in providing spatial encoding, which is essential for the accurate localization of signals coming from within the human body. This spatial encoding is fundamental to generating detailed images of various tissues and structures. Furthermore, the RF system is vital for managing the excitation of the nuclei within the sample, as well as facilitating the detection of the signals that are emitted from these nuclear spins. In the context of the RF system, RF coils are of particular significance because they directly influence both the spatial and temporal resolution of the imaging process, thereby affecting the clarity and detail of the images produced. Additionally, RF coils have a profound impact on the sensitivity and uniformity of the signal, which are critical factors in achieving highquality images that play a vital role in effectively diagnosing various medical conditions. The interplay between these components ensures that MRI technology continues to advance, offering improved diagnostic capabilities to healthcare professionals across the globe [76, 77, 78, 79, 80, 9, 81].

The RF system effectively bifurcates into two distinct and essential elements: the transmit components and the receive components. The transmit coil, which plays a pivotal role, is responsible for emitting a precise RF magnetic-field pulse (commonly referred to as B1) that serves to rotate the magnetization away from the main magnetic field surrounding it. In stark contrast, a receive coil plays an equally crucial role in detecting the timevarying magnetic flux that is generated by the precessing spins of the particles involved. These spins, which are in constant motion, induce a current within the coil, which is then amplified significantly to enhance the overall signal and demodulated effectively, allowing for the detailed reconstruction of images from the valuable data collected during the imaging process. It is noteworthy that certain advanced types of coils combine both transmitting and receiving functions into a single unit for improved efficiency and optimized performance. The transmit pulse itself is instrumental in initiating precession at frequencies that are very close to the precession frequency of the spins involved, and it remains activated for a duration that typically spans from tens to hundreds of milliseconds. This particular period is crucial for ensuring that the necessary conditions for effective imaging are met, thus allowing for the successful and accurate acquisition of the desired data that is essential for producing high-quality images in various applications [82, 83, 84, 85, 86, 87, 88].

3.3 Gradient System Engineering

Set clear, precisely outlined, and concise directions alongside comprehensive specifications for the gradient coil in a well-organized manner. Following this, it is essential to closely identify and diligently determine the total number of filler loops that are utilized in the critical designated space, which exists between the very center point and the outer edges of the complex coil geometry. In the next step, carefully assess and thoroughly establish the target field region intended specifically for the coil. This assessment should include the specific viewing directions that are directly related to the primary windings of the coil, while also thoroughly taking into account the areas where the magnetic flux remains entirely unscreened and can interact effectively. Furthermore, it is necessary to evaluate and analyze the maximum wavelength that is observable within the continuous current stream function that emerges as a result of this intricate configuration. Such evaluations are critical not only to ensure efficient functionality but also to determine the overall effectiveness and performance of the gradient coil in practical applications. Ensuring that all aspects of the design, implementation, and evaluation are meticulously addressed will lead to improved reliability and results in the coil's performance [89, 90, 91, 92, 93, 94, 95, 96]

The gradient system comprises four main components that operate across five distinct modes. The individual components are a 2.2-kW gradient amplifier, sourced from Copley Controls located in Copley, MA, an activelyshielded gradient coil, a ripple current filter, and a gradient heat monitor. Each of these components was meticulously chosen to guarantee seamless compatibility with the state-of-the-art 3-T Agilent Discovery MR750 clinical scanner. Among these components, two specifically, the gradient system and the amplifier, are capable of functioning in either clinical or preclinical modes of operation, allowing for versatile use in multiple settings. The 2.5cm bore actively-shielded gradient coil, which is developed by Teemtro Tech. in Fremont, CA, integrates smoothly with the 3-T clinical MRI magnet and achieves an impressive maximum gradient strength of 675 mT/m, along with maximum slew rates reaching up to 6750 T/m/s. This elegantly designed actively-shielded coil not only enhances performance but also effectively minimizes eddy currents both in and around the scanner bore, leading to improved imaging accuracy. Given the compact size of this carefully shimmable gradient coil, the imaging region is constrained to a 16mm-diameter spherical field-of-view (FOV), which is essential for focused imaging tasks. Furthermore, the integrated gradient coil facilitates a straightforward transition from clinical mode to preclinical operation and vice versa during imaging sessions, ensuring operational flexibility to meet diverse clinical needs [97, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105].

3.4 Control Systems and Software

In an MRI system, there exists a multitude of primary subsystems that are effectively managed and meticulously controlled from a central console. This console serves a crucial role in the entirety of the imaging process as it incorporates a comprehensive user interface that is specifically designed for the purpose of selecting the appropriate scanning protocols necessary for a wide variety of imaging tasks. This selection process ensures that the correct settings are applied for optimal imaging results. Additionally, the console has the important responsibility of overseeing environmental conditions, which includes maintaining temperature regulation, monitoring relative humidity, and implementing essential safety monitoring protocols. These protocols are particularly vital to ensure the well-being of both the patients and the operational efficiency of the MRI system itself. The operational control of each individual subsystem involved in the imaging process is also under the jurisdiction of the console. This central coordination is critical for ensuring that all activities are synchronized, and that each subsystem functions at its best capability without any conflicting operations. Moreover, specific functionalities such as pulse sequence generation or gradient coding within each subsystem are meticulously regulated by dedicated electronics boards, which are designed to operate under the careful supervision and guidance of the console processor. During the intricate process of image acquisition, the console processor assumes the significant task of assembling the returned MR signals into a cohesive and well-structured digital image matrix. This matrix preparation is crucial, as it allows for the subsequent display of high-quality images. The processor also formats this matrix in preparation for final display, which encompasses vital procedures such as shading corrections and transformations of the raw array data into a more interpretable format. Ultimately, the resultant image, once polished and refined to meet the necessary standards, is displayed for review on a screen, providing vital and comprehensive information to medical personnel engaged in diagnosis and patient care. The entire operation underscores the importance of each component working in harmony for effective imaging [106, 78, 107, 108, 109, 110, 111, 112]

Chapter - 4

MRI Imaging Techniques

MRI signals fundamentally arise from spin relaxation phenomena, which are elaborately described by relaxation times and various intricate mechanisms. The process of spatial encoding relies heavily on linear gradients that are carefully superimposed onto the static main magnetic field, effectively modulating the MRI signal in both amplitude and phase dimensions. This modulation proves to be crucial to pinpoint the precise origin of the signal within the object that is being imaged. From an engineering standpoint, a comprehensive understanding of these essential principles is vitally important, as it directly informs the thoughtful design of critical components including magnets, radiofrequency coils, and gradient subsystems. These complex elements must work in unison to execute the carefully crafted pulse sequences that form the foundation of advanced imaging techniques utilized in state-of-the-art MRI systems. As technology evolves, the integration and optimization of these components continue to enhance the capabilities and accuracy of MRI imaging, leading to improved diagnostic outcomes in clinical settings [113, 114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119]

A diverse variety of advanced imaging sequences are now readily available for various clinical and research applications, enhancing our ability to analyze and interpret complex biological structures. Spin-echo sequences, for instance, are particularly renowned for generating exceptionally highquality images that are not contaminated by artefacts, thereby greatly improving the clarity and detail necessary for imaging the proton spin density and relaxation times effectively. Turbo spin-echo sequences elegantly adapt and enhance traditional spin-echo techniques, allowing for much faster image acquisition while still maintaining much of the high image quality expected from such methodologies. The involution of inversion recovery sequences plays a significant role in effectively suppressing signals that arise from fluids or fat, which can often introduce unwanted noise and complicate the imaging process. Furthermore, multiple gradient echoes can be efficiently sampled in a single radiofrequency excitation, all derived from a gradient-echo pulse sequence. This approach is remarkably effective in imaging proton density and relaxation times while also imposing a high demand on the performance capabilities of the magnetic-field gradients utilized throughout the imaging process. Innovative techniques such as diffusion-weighted MRI and perfusion-weighted MRI are particularly applicable and highly beneficial in the context of brain imaging, where they provide critical information about tissue structure and blood flow dynamics that can significantly impact diagnosis and treatment strategies for various neurological conditions. In addition to these methods, susceptibilityweighted imaging excels at producing high-resolution images that capture fine details concerning venous blood, the presence of haemorrhages, and the intricate processes associated with iron storage, making it an invaluable tool for particular neurological assessments and diagnoses. Functional MRI a blood-oxygen-level-dependent (BOLD) contrast (fMRI) employs mechanism, which measures variations in regional blood flow within the brain during a variety of functional activities. This unique capability enables meticulous mapping of intricate brain functions, a process that is increasingly becoming an essential element within presurgical planning protocols. Lastly, diffusion tensor imaging (DTI) serves as a sophisticated and advanced imaging modality that meticulously measures diffusion anisotropy, thereby facilitating the visualization and quantification of fibre orientation and connectivity along the intricate white-matter pathways present within the brain. This detailed analysis is critical for a comprehensive understanding of neural connectivity and integrity, as well as for the evaluation of various neurological disorders. Through these diverse and powerful imaging techniques, researchers and clinicians alike are equipped with tools to advance the field of medical imaging and enhance patient outcomes [120, 121, 122, 123, 124, 125, 126, 127, 128]

Fat suppression is a widely employed and absolutely vital technique that plays a significant and critical role in diverse imaging modalities, particularly those that are focused on specific body regions. This technique considerably enhances the clarity, resolution, and overall detail of various structures within the abdominal, breast, and musculoskeletal systems, which includes not only the muscle tissues but also the intricate, delicate details of cartilage. This essential method allows for a much-improved visualization of these essential regions and facilitates more accurate diagnosis and evaluation, which is crucial for effective patient assessment as well as informed treatment planning. In addition to employing advanced fat suppression techniques, magnetic resonance angiography (MRA) and venography (MRV) play integral and indispensable roles in providing critical diagnostic insights into the complex vascular systems that are located within various body regions. Notably, MRV is particularly adept at detecting

clots, blockages, and other vascular anomalies when utilizing advanced MRI technology, thus establishing itself as an invaluable tool in the diagnosis of conditions related to thrombosis and other blood flow issues. Furthermore, advanced techniques like proton MR spectroscopic imaging (MRSI) and innovative X-nuclei systems - with the notable use of 3He being the most prominent and impactful example - are intricately linked to MRI practices and procedures. These sophisticated technologies offer complementary and additional information that can be seamlessly accessed and evaluated through a comprehensive MRI scanner, thereby significantly enhancing the overall understanding of complex pathophysiological processes and variables encountered in clinical practice. This combination of techniques provides essential and critical data that not only aids in the precise diagnosis but, ultimately, can significantly improve patient outcomes in a myriad of clinical contexts and therapeutic considerations [129, 130, 131, 132, 133, 134, 135, 136, 137, 138]

4.1 Conventional MRI Sequences

Conventional MRI sequences can be categorised effectively based on their specific contrast behaviour and are commonly seen in clinical practice across a variety of medical fields and specialties. These sequences typically include spin echo (SE) T1-weighted images, which are essential for visualising anatomical structures and identifying pathological changes. In addition, spin echo (SE) T2-weighted images provide valuable contrast in fluid-filled areas, making them fundamental in assessing conditions like edema and tumors. The suite of available sequences also encompasses inversion recovery (IR) T1-weighted images, which excel in suppressing fat signal, thus enhancing the visibility of other structures. Moreover, doubleinversion recovery (IR) T2-weighted images further improve the detection of lesions by suppressing signals from both fat and water, thereby increasing overall diagnostic accuracy. Additionally, turbo or fast spin echo T1weighted images, along with turbo- or fast spin echo T2-weighted images, enable quicker acquisition times while maintaining image quality. Furthermore, proton density (PD)-weighted sequences are crucial for examining cartilage and other soft tissue structures where subtle differences in density come into play. It is also important to acknowledge the role of gradient echo (GE) sequences, including the fast low-angle shot (FLASH) T1-weighted sequences, which allow for dynamic imaging and are particularly useful in functional studies. Fluid-attenuated inversion recovery (FLAIR) sequences and steady-state free precession (SSFP), or fast imaging with steady precession (FISP) sequences, also play crucial roles in providing detailed images, particularly in the assessment of neurological conditions. The choice of pulse duration and echo time is vital in determining the most appropriate and effective use of these sequences in T1- or T2-weighted scans, as each sequence has its own unique advantages. T1 imaging is preferably performed using short pulse durations and short echo times to maximize spatial resolution and detail. In contrast, T2-weighted imaging often requires longer pulse durations and comparatively longer echo times in order to ensure optimal image quality and enhanced contrast. This careful selection and management of parameters directly influence the diagnostic efficacy and overall performance of magnetic resonance imaging as a whole, highlighting the necessity of a thorough understanding of these sequences for accurate interpretation and patient care [14, 139, 140, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146].

4.2 Advanced Imaging Techniques

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) stands as an exceedingly powerful tool in medical imaging, providing extraordinarily detailed spatial and temporal characterization of the molecular environment across various samples. Within this vast and expansive field, two prominent categories of experiments commonly referred to as "molecular imaging" have emerged, namely: chemical exchange saturation transfer (CEST) and hyperpolarized 13C (HP 13C) MRI. In hyperpolarized MRI experiments, the sensitivity achieved through the process of insensitive nuclear polarization is significantly increased by several orders of magnitude when compared to conventional imaging techniques. Meanwhile, CEST uniquely encodes critical molecular information directly into the water signal itself. CEST experiments rely heavily on the gradual buildup of saturated magnetization in a designated solute site, which subsequently undergoes slow chemical exchange into a water site. This process ultimately provides an invaluable indirect measurement of the solute's presence and its dynamic behavior over time. On the opposite end of the spectrum, hyperpolarized MRI experiments primarily focus on monitoring the complex exchange of hyperpolarization between two different species. In this context, the level of hyperpolarization within a single sample will ultimately dictate the quality and intensity of the resulting signal for those particular measurements. Moreover, various advanced MRI techniques that exhibit sensitivity to parameters extending beyond merely proton density or relaxation time offer additional significant potential for highly detailed sample characterization. An MRI technique that ideally possesses biological sensitivity aims to effectively detect and distinguish the intricate metabolic, energetic, or functional properties of a specific target. The current methodologies employed to investigate biological phenomena using MRI fulfill this criterion to a certain extent; however, they do not completely harness the totality of its potential. The chemical exchange release of labile protons, strategically located near hydroxyl, amine, or amide groups, as measured through CEST, emerges as an area of considerable biological interest and significance. In addition, the capability to closely monitor hyperpolarized substrates and to investigate their resulting metabolic products provides hyperpolarized MRI with an outstanding foundation for a variety of biological applications. Additionally, the innovative use of fluorine 19 (19F) MR is finding its place as a noteworthy advancement since it takes full advantage of the absence of any exogenous 19F nuclei in the human body. This unique characteristic provides researchers with the exceptional ability to actively track the precise localization of various 19F substrates specifically within different biological systems. The biomarker spatial resolutions available through these cuttingedge techniques afford researchers with essential material and physiological information, vastly expanding the range of possible applications within this domain. The profound level of understanding of molecular biology that MRI can proficiently facilitate, when combined with continuous improvements and innovations inherent in the technique itself, significantly highlights both the sensitivity and flexibility of MRI technologies. This suggests, with a high degree of certainty, that the utilization of these powerful imaging techniques will consistently grow and evolve in the future, thereby unlocking new and limitless potential in the ongoing quest to understand complex biological systems at a deeper level [129, 130, 131, 116, 147, 148, 28, 149, 150, 151]

4.3 Functional MRI (fMRI)

Functional magnetic resonance imaging, which is often abbreviated as fMRI, represents a highly sophisticated and advanced technique that seamlessly merges BOLD (Blood Oxygen Level Dependent) imaging methodologies with traditional magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) modalities. This cutting-edge approach enables researchers to perform scans on the anatomically normal brains of healthy volunteers while these individuals engage in carefully crafted experimental paradigms that are specifically designed for research purposes. The primary objective of this intricate and detailed technique is to significantly deepen our understanding of the complexities and functionalities of the human brain. The process of functional activation within the brain can be effectively detected by closely monitoring changes in local blood flow as well as variations in oxygenation levels within the highly metabolically active neurons that are located within the cortex. Within this framework, statistical parametric mapping, which is

widely recognized as SPM, plays an essential and crucial role in identifying and ascertaining which specific brain regions are involved in fulfilling particular tasks and cognitive thought processes. This includes a broad range of functions, especially those closely related to language and communication, which are vital for human interaction, expression, and understanding. Ultimately, the insights garnered from fMRI studies open up new avenues for understanding not only the structure of the brain but also its dynamic functionality, which is essential for numerous aspects of daily life and social interaction [152, 153, 154, 155, 156, 157, 158, 159].

The human brain is known to consume an impressive approximately 40– 50% of the total body oxygen supply when it is at rest. This specific level of oxygen consumption is absolutely critical for its numerous and complex functioning processes. In contrast to the conventional chemical indicator dilution technique that is often employed in some medical assessments and evaluations, functional MRI offers a truly unique and different approach. It is fundamentally based on the differing magnetic susceptibility that can be found in both oxy- and deoxyhaemoglobin. Specifically, deoxyhaemoglobin acts as a paramagnetic substance, which leads to a notable and significant loss of signal during various imaging processes. On average, the haematocrit of human blood is around 40%, which indicates the proportion of blood volume that is occupied by red blood cells in a normal physiological state. Moreover, the volume fraction of haemoglobin in relation to red blood cells is approximately 67%, which is particularly significant for understanding how oxygen is effectively transported throughout the body. This essential relationship plays a crucial role in brain function, as well as in overall health and vitality. Understanding these intricate details about oxygen consumption and blood characteristics enhances our comprehension of neurological functioning and its impacts on human health [160, 161, 162, 163, 164, 165].

The T2 of blood, which is measured at a frequency of $\lambda e = 75$ MHz, is significantly influenced and determined by a multitude of various factors. These factors include, but are not limited to, haematocrit levels, the degree of oxygenation present in the blood, and the temperature of a given blood sample at the time of measurement. The equation that relates these factors can be expressed as cyn, $(16 \pm 0.6) (100 - \text{Sat})^2.65 (52 \pm 1.6)$, which applies specifically and exclusively to those oxygenation levels that fall within the defined and specified range of 40% to 100%. These distinct and critical parameters collectively serve to represent and characterize the unique physiological state and condition of the blood being examined. Typically, arterial blood exhibits an oxygen saturation that is remarkably high, usually

around 98% to 100%. On the other hand, the oxygen saturation levels that can be found in venous blood vary considerably, ranging broadly from approximately 57% to 71%. It is notable that, in the case of brain venous outflow, particularly for the jugular vein, the saturation level of oxygen can drop significantly down to around 23%. This considerable variation underscores the importance of carefully monitoring these crucial metrics in assessing the overall health, efficiency, and functionality of the body's circulatory system, which is vital for sustaining life and maintaining homeostasis [166, 167, 168, 169, 170, 171, 172].

The detection of regional blood flow changes that occur in the human brain while performing simple yet highly effective mental tasks was extensively demonstrated in a significant and influential study conducted by Singer et al. In this comprehensive investigation, the authors effectively illustrated and detailed how different brain regions specifically responded when engaging in straightforward cognitive activities, which are crucial for various everyday tasks. Meanwhile, the measurement of cerebral haemodynamics in patients afflicted with a wide range of various neurological diseases using advanced and innovative fMRI techniques was thoroughly shown and explored by Tumeh et al. Their groundbreaking research provided vital and invaluable insights into the brain's nuanced response in individuals suffering from different conditions and disorders. Furthermore, numerous commercial manufacturers are actively developing state-of-the-art fMRI facilities that utilize high-field MRI scanners to significantly enhance the quality and precision of these vital and important measurements. These remarkable advancements hold great promise and potential for furthering our understanding of brain activity and its wideranging implications in the ever-evolving field of neuroscience, opening new avenues for research and treatment [173, 174, 175, 176, 177, 178, 179].

The intricacies of complexity in modern medicine, along with a profound and deep reservoir of expert knowledge in critical areas such as technical, methodological, and neurophysiological domains, continue to be fundamentally essential for various clinical applications in contemporary healthcare practices. This necessity becomes particularly pronounced when it comes to the meticulous, thorough, and careful evaluation and assessment of patients who present with a wide array of complex pathological brain conditions that require highly customized and tailored approaches. As it stands, there are currently no universally accepted standard protocols that have yet been established or emerged, which can effectively cater to the specific and unique needs of individualized clinical settings across diverse

medical conditions. This significant gap highlights how making informed decisions in treatment strategies is becoming increasingly intricate and convoluted, thereby making the expertise in these complex fields that much more vital, crucial, and indispensable for achieving successful patient outcomes. The profound implications of these complexities further reinforce the urgent need for comprehensive training and education for healthcare professionals who are tasked with navigating these challenges in clinical practice [180, 181, 182, 183, 184, 185].

4.4 Diffusion Tensor Imaging (DTI)

Diffusion tensor imaging (DTI) is a highly advanced imaging technology that reveals the complexities of diffusion anisotropy, providing researchers with crucial insights into the intricate directional distribution of water diffusivity. This capability enables the investigation of complex microstructures within brain tissue and facilitates detailed mapping of white matter fiber tracts in vivo, which is essential for understanding brain connectivity and function. The phenomenon known as diffusion anisotropy is significantly affected by the unique properties of different underlying tissues as well as the intricate arrangements of various microstructures present within those tissues. Water molecules that are located within distinct types of tissue can exhibit diffusion characteristics that span a spectrum from isotropic diffusion-where molecular movement occurs equally in all directions-to anisotropic diffusion, where movement is preferentially channeled along defined fiber tracts. In the specific context of white matter, diffusion predominantly occurs in a parallel orientation to the axonal structure, which is further enhanced by the presence of protective myelin sheaths that insulate these nerve fibers and facilitate efficient signal conduction. In the landscape of diffusion-weighted magnetic resonance imaging (DW-MRI), all experimental setups consistently begin by acquiring the unweighted signal, which is denoted as S0. For the thorough analysis of diffusion-weighted images, there exists a standard characterization represented by a parameter called the b value. This critical parameter effectively describes the extent of diffusion weighting that is applied and signifies the sensitivity of the imaging technique to potential motion artifacts during the assessment process. In typical DTI studies, the b values can vary considerably, usually ranging anywhere from approximately 700 to as high as 1200 sec/mm2, depending on the specific requirements and intricacies of the imaging protocol adopted for a given study. Moreover, the diffusion tensor itself encapsulates the properties of diffusion within a threedimensional ellipsoidal framework characterized by three distinct eigenvalues ($\lambda 1 \ge \lambda 2 \ge \lambda 3$). These eigenvalues provide vital insights into the magnitude of diffusion occurring in each directional axis, accompanied by three orthogonal eigenvectors (v1, v2, v3) that indicate the preferred direction of diffusion within the tissue. Of notable significance is the principal diffusivity that is specifically measured along the primary axis, corresponding directly to the eigenvalue $\lambda 1$. Diffusion tensor MRI possesses the capability to yield quantitative parameters including fractional anisotropy (FA), relative anisotropy (RA), and volume ratio (VR). These quantitative parameters are invaluable to researchers, as they reveal important variations in the diffusion tensor characteristics across the imaging volume being investigated. The individual elements of the diffusion tensor represent correlations in molecular displacements that occur in various spatial directions, clearly showcasing that in anisotropic media, the diagonal elements of the tensor reflect different values, which are indicative of distinct diffusion characteristics across different tissue types. It is also essential to recognize that diffusion profiles exhibit notable differences depending on the specific types of brain tissues being examined: cerebrospinal fluid (CSF) demonstrates isotropic diffusion patterns, while the diffusion profile associated with gray matter adopts a characteristic cigarshaped ellipsoid configuration, which highlights its unique structural properties and compositions. Overall, DTI emerges as an incredibly useful tool in neuroscience and clinical research, offering significant insights to map the brain's extensive macroscopic connectivity network; however, it is crucial to acknowledge the limitation that DTI lacks the resolution necessary to effectively resolve the complex microscopic neuronal structures that influence these broader connectivity patterns [186, 187, 188, 189, 190, 191, 192, 193, 194].

Chapter - 5

Clinical Applications of MRI

Cardiovascular imaging and musculoskeletal imaging play vital roles in modern medical practice, focusing on thorough assessments of various components, including ligaments, tendons, bone structures, cartilage, and the jaw. These imaging techniques are of paramount importance, as they provide insights necessary for accurate diagnosis and effective treatment planning. In addition to these areas, MRI proves to be instrumental in the diagnosis and staging of breast cancer, which remains a significant concern in healthcare. Furthermore, its applications are extensive and stretch to various other important clinical areas involving both the body and the brain, highlighting its versatility in medical diagnostics. These diverse applications are not only instrumental in patient care but also serve as primary motivations guiding current research trajectories in Magnetic Resonance Imaging (MRI). Over time, the role of MRI in the medical domain has evolved into a wellestablished and indispensable component, especially in the context of class-1 therapeutic planning. This aspect is particularly crucial for ensuring accurate measurements of treatment responses throughout the progression of disease. The special capability of MRI derives from its unique potential to deliver exceptional visualizations of soft tissues, along with providing critical functional information about the health status of a broad array of organs and systems within the human body. Additionally, for readers seeking further insights, a comprehensive review is available that meticulously details the primary methods employed in clinical quantitative MRI practices, which have been thoroughly documented in the existing literature, thereby contributing to the knowledge base in this essential field. [195, 196, 197, 198, 199, 200, 201, 202, 203]

5.1 Neurological Imaging

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) has a profound and transformative impact on the comprehensive study of the intricate human brain. Structural MRI is widely recognized as the mainstay technique utilized in clinical settings, diligently employed to detect abnormalities and meticulously track changes over time. This sophisticated imaging method effectively identifies

lesions in a variety of diseases, including but not limited to multiple sclerosis, Alzheimer's, epilepsy, and schizophrenia. MRI is often regarded as the modality of choice when it comes to investigating neurological disorders and offers a remarkable suite of benefits when compared to other imaging techniques. A myriad of modalities is available for the in-depth study of brain anatomy and physiology, with each option presenting distinct advantages as well as disadvantages. For instance, X-ray-based techniques provide exceptional spatial resolution; however, they can be significantly limited by the inherent need for exposure to ionising radiation. On the other hand, techniques such as positron emission tomography offer noteworthy biological specificity, yet they grapplingly contend with poor spatial resolution and similarly involve radiation exposure. Moreover, electroencephalography and magnetic encephalography deliver excellent temporal resolution concerning neuronal activity, but these methods suffer from considerable limitations in spatial localization, which restricts their utility. Magnetic resonance imaging adeptly overcomes these various difficulties by intricately manipulating the alignment and relaxation of nuclear spins through the application of a strong magnetic field. The diverse imaging sequences used in MRI reflect various tissue relaxation properties, with T1-weighted MRI being particularly valuable as it utilizes the spinlattice relaxation time. This time varies between tissues, with the most distinctive variations noted between water and fatty tissue composition. Despite great advancements, progress in clinical brain science has historically been slow compared to that seen in other medical fields. Available treatments for neurodegenerative diseases are notably limited, and effective cure strategies remain stubbornly underdeveloped. However, recent technical advances in neuroimaging now offer enhanced characterization of crucial microstructural anatomy, network connectivity, and functional biomarkers pertinent to both health and disease. Cutting-edge techniques, including diffusion tensor imaging, diffusion-based tractography, and positron emission tomography, are firmly at the forefront of these burgeoning applications. Furthermore, the glymphatic system is currently being explored as a promising target for future neuroimaging in clinical populations such as patients with Alzheimer's disease. The human brain remains a highly complex and challenging organ to study due to its encasement in hard bone and its extraordinary sensitivity to homeostatic disruptions. Early insights into the critical relationships between brain structure and function were primarily derived from clinical evaluations of traumatic brain injury, most notably exemplified by the case of Mr. Phineas Gage. Nevertheless, models developed from these early assessments were limited due to the notable heterogeneity in lesion location and the associated severity of the injuries. As we move forward, the integration of new technological insights is essential to successfully bridge the gap that currently exists between histopathological studies and the in vivo examinations of human brain function. This continued evolution will undoubtedly enrich our understanding of the brain's complexities, ultimately leading to improved diagnostic and therapeutic strategies [204, 205, 206, 207, 208, 209, 210, 211, 212, 213, 214, 215]

5.2 Musculoskeletal Imaging

Musculoskeletal MRI continues to emerge as an increasingly vital and crucial application in the realm of modern medical imaging, making up a significant and substantial portion of all examinations performed in various clinical settings around the world. The imaging process is typically carried out using specialized extremity or wrist coils that are meticulously designed to enhance the quality, clarity, and precision of the acquired images for accurate diagnostics. A diverse variety of pulse sequences are employed during the imaging process, including proton-density weighted fast spinecho sequences, which can be utilized effectively with or without the incorporation of fat saturation techniques to optimize and improve the visualization of the tissues involved. Furthermore, gradient-echo imaging is commonly and frequently utilized to effectively detect the presence of cartilage abnormalities or trabecular fractures, along with other types of fractures that predominantly involve cortical locations in the bones. T1weighted spin-echo sequences, both pre-contrast and post-contrast, remain significantly important in the evaluation and assessment of bone tumors and various marrow diseases, which encompass infections and hematologic disorders that may compromise and impact the integrity of bone and surrounding tissues. This versatility and range of imaging techniques reflect the crucial role of musculoskeletal MRI in providing comprehensive, accurate, and reliable diagnostic information essential for patient care [216, 217, 218, 211, 219, 220, 221, 222]

Conventional radiography and computed tomography (CT) have long been established as the primary and most commonly utilized diagnostic imaging modalities for assessing both the axial and appendicular skeleton within the realm of clinical practice-most notably in trauma cases where rapid assessment is required. These imaging techniques can sometimes be quite adequate for the crucial tasks of detection, characterization, and assessment of disease activity, particularly in regard to both benign and aggressive tumors. However, it is important to note that cross-sectional

imaging, such as MRI, can provide essential additional information that proves invaluable for both diagnosis and staging in cases of aggressive bone tumors, as well as marrow and bone metastases. MRI, in particular, offers superior tissue contrast compared to other imaging modalities, which is highly advantageous for clinicians aiming to obtain a comprehensive understanding of a patient's condition. It facilitates thorough multiplanar evaluation and advanced diagnostic insights, which ultimately makes it the technique of choice for accurately assessing the bone marrow, soft-tissue components, and the true extent of lesions present in the area of interest. Furthermore, MRI presents additional benefits, including the absence of any ionizing radiation exposure that is common in other imaging techniques, thus promoting enhanced safety for patients, particularly in scenarios where multiple follow-up scans might be necessary. This absence of radiation also contributes to excellent reproducibility for follow-up imaging, allowing clinicians to monitor patients effectively over time and ensuring that they can track changes in the disease process without exposing the patient to harmful consequences. PET-CT has become widely employed within oncology practice and has shown to serve integral roles in both treatment planning and ongoing monitoring of patients who are dealing with osseous metastases. This hybrid imaging method boasts superior capabilities for metabolic, functional, and molecular evaluation of tumors but does come with the limitation of lacking tissue specificity that might be necessary in certain diagnostic situations or when precise localization of a tumor is paramount. Consequently, radiologists and oncologists often have to choose the most appropriate imaging modality based on the clinical context and the specific needs of each individual patient [223, 224, 225, 209, 226, 227, 228].

5.3 Cardiac MRI

Visited cardiac MRI serves as an invaluable and complementary source of detailed imaging information that is crucial for informed clinical decision-making regarding patients who have faced the challenging experience of missed abortions. This advanced imaging technique offers a comprehensive and nuanced assessment of both the morphological and functional characteristics of the heart, all while employing a safe and non-invasive approach. Furthermore, it achieves exceptionally high temporal and spatial resolution, which greatly enhances the accuracy of the analyses performed. The ability to detect functional abnormalities within the heart can serve as key indicators that guide subsequent clinical treatment methods and interventions. Consequently, the insights gained from cardiac MRI can play an essential and transformative role in the development of tailored

therapeutic strategies that are specifically designed for these patients, ultimately leading to better health outcomes and improved overall management of their conditions. [229, 230, 231, 232, 233, 234, 235]

Translating MR technology from the preclinical setting and research phase into the actual realm of clinical practice necessitates a highly dedicated and meticulously crafted RF coil design. This design must effectively address the numerous technical challenges that are inherently present in brain imaging, particularly concerning subjects who are within the delicate parameters of a human neonatal head MRI coil. Given the physiological characteristics of neonates, the brain of a newborn infant encompasses approximately 8% of their total body weight, leading to a situation where it consequently receives a comparatively significant specific absorption rate (SAR) contribution from RF exposure. This scenario introduces unique challenges for practitioners and engineers alike, especially when operating at ultra-high-field strengths, where the intricacies of the design of RF coils specifically for neonatal brain imaging become critically important. The focus is thus not solely on achieving optimal B1 + efficiency but also on effectively suppressing the local specific absorption rate in the immediate vicinity surrounding the high-dielectric neonatal head. This aspect remains an ongoing and complex challenge in the field, requiring innovative solutions and thorough understanding to enhance safety and imaging effectiveness in this sensitive population [236, 237, 238, 239, 240, 241].

5.4 Oncological Imaging

Oncological imaging represents a crucial and significant application of electromagnetic (EM) technologies within the vast and intricate field of medicine. The ICTN, which is a prominent centre node of the Hawkesbury Institute for the Environment, is currently embarking on a comprehensive and extensive research project that thoroughly focuses on the biodistribution and subsequent fate of ferrous particles within an experimental animal model designed specifically for this purpose. Following the carefully controlled intraperitoneal administration of approximately 10^10 particles, each measuring an exact 5 µm in size and containing iron, the animals undergo an elaborately and meticulously arranged series of long-term MRI scans aimed at capturing detailed images. This imaging process is then thoughtfully complemented by rigorous post-mortem analyses employing micro-X-ray Computed Tomography along with thorough histological examinations. Initial results indicate that during the important span of 5 days, the particles exhibit a marked tendency to gradually accumulate within the complex and intricate network of meandering peritoneal lymphatics. Additionally, in direct response to the administration of these particles, some notable morphological changes and distortions begin to manifest, which are believed to be closely associated with the occurrence of oedema within the mesenteric tissue surrounding the affected area. These findings provide critical and invaluable insights into the behavior of ferrous particles in biological systems and their potential implications for improving oncological imaging techniques, offering a path toward enhanced understanding of these interactions that could shape future developments in the field. [242, 243, 244, 245, 246, 247, 248]

The phytoplankton-zooplankton cycle represents a fascinating and crucial ecological process characterized by the activity of small-diameter planktonic photosynthesizers, known collectively as phytoplankton. These microscopic organisms flourish and reproduce extensively when nutrients, such as nitrates and phosphates, are plentiful in their aquatic habitats. Phytoplankton serves as the foundation of aquatic food webs, providing the primary source of energy for a variety of marine creatures. In tandem with the phytoplankton are somewhat larger zooplanktonic grazers; these organisms actively consume the phytoplankton and form a complex and intricate relationship within this ecological cycle. Typically, the cycle experiences constraints in duration due to nutrient loss that occurs through various phases of biological change and physical processes, which can significantly deplete the vital resources necessary for uninterrupted phytoplankton growth. Furthermore, these organisms face a consistent and pressing necessity to avoid being predated upon by larger predators inhabiting their ecosystem. The interactions within this cycle thereby emphasize the dynamic balance required for the survival of these vital organisms. To further study this cycle, researchers utilize electron microscopy (EM), an essential tool that allows them to meticulously interpret and analyze the nature and amplitude of the oscillations observed in phytoplankton abundance. This is particularly relevant when examining how these organisms react to diverse conditions such as a consistent influx of nutrients or periodic variations in nutrient availability. This advanced method equips scientists with invaluable insights into the intricate and dynamic responses of phytoplankton populations to shifting environmental factors over time. The broader ecological phenomenon of oscillating resources reveals the complex interplay of competitive interactions among different species, alongside the oscillatory behaviors that can emerge as a result of these interactions. Gaining a comprehensive understanding of this cycle is fundamental to our overall comprehension of aquatic ecosystems and the myriad interactions that collectively sustain them through various generational shifts. It illuminates the essential roles that both phytoplankton and zooplankton play in maintaining a balanced and healthy aquatic environment, which is crucial for both ecological health and human interests. [249, 250, 251, 252, 253, 254, 255, 256]

Safety and Quality Assurance in MRI

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) is widely recognized as a rapidly advancing and sophisticated technology that is remarkably capable of producing highly detailed and intricate images of various anatomical structures within the human body. However, a comprehensive and thorough assessment of MRI safety that was conducted at an impressive 43 different imaging facilities scattered throughout Saudi Arabia has unveiled significant findings showing that the equipment can present certain mathematical dangers that absolutely cannot be overlooked or ignored. The powerful static magnetic field that is generated by MRI scanners can, in fact, be eight times more intense than the magnetic fields created by other medical imaging devices used in clinical practice. This intensity leads to the potential for a dangerous projectile effect on ferromagnetic objects that happen to be located in the vicinity of the MRI machines. In numerous instances, the physical space that surrounds the MRI unit can be quite severely limited, which significantly increases the various risk factors associated with the use of such powerful machinery and technology in close quarters. Furthermore, the magnetic frequency together with the variations in the magnetic field can lead to significantly high tissue heating, raising serious concerns about safety and the overall welfare of patients undergoing such procedures. Additionally, the use of contrast media, particularly gadolinium chelates that are injected into the subject prior to imaging procedures, can greatly enhance the detection and precise characterization of various lesions or can contribute to the highly detailed visualization of their morphologic characteristics, providing essential and critical information for accurate diagnosis and effective treatment strategies [257, 258, 107, 259, 260, 261, 262, 263, 264]

Pre-MRI screening for ferromagnetic objects, such as medical devices like pacemakers, aneurysm clips, and hearing aids, is absolutely critical in order to prevent dangerous incidents that could lead to projectile injuries, thermal burns, hypothermia, and anoxia. The design of the MRI unit is a significant factor, as is the presence of adequate signage aimed at public education, which informs individuals about potential dangers. Careful screening at unit access points is another essential measure, along with the

establishment of local operating procedures, all of which contribute to ensuring overall safety within the MRI environment. While safety practices can vary somewhat from one MRI unit to another, it is crucial to note that all MRI technologists undergo comprehensive safety training at the onset of their employment, a process that is further complemented by regular training updates throughout their careers to keep skills sharp and knowledge current. This training content encompasses a wide array of topics, which includes technical, professional, and medical aspects that reflect the current best practices established within the industry. Furthermore, staff and patients routinely utilize personal protective equipment (PPE) such as gloves, masks, and eye protection. The consistent use of PPE is instrumental in further reducing the risk associated with projectile injuries and significantly enhancing overall safety in the MRI setting. This multi-faceted approach to MRI safety is vital not only for the wellbeing of patients but also for the protection of healthcare providers, ensuring that both parties can engage with the MRI process without undue risk [265, 266, 267, 268, 269, 263, 270].

Despite having put such precautions in place, a pilot study that was undertaken at the two public hospitals located in the central region of South Africa discovered that both the 1.5T and 3.0T MRI units are still facing notable safety challenges that cannot be overlooked. There are several safety shortfalls that could be effectively addressed by thoroughly updating the MRI-specific safety policies, which should be regularly reviewed to reflect current best practices. Moreover, it is essential to provide comprehensive MR safety training to all staff members, ensuring everyone is well-informed and prepared. Additionally, installing properly functioning ferromagnetic detectors is crucial for maintaining safety standards, alongside demarcating all MRI safety zones while ensuring strict compliance with access restrictions. It is also important for staff to receive in-depth training regarding proper PPE (personal protective equipment) use and understanding of MRI-related health effects that can pose risks. Implementing these crucial measures requires the establishment of a comprehensive occupational health and safety programme that must be actively supported and promoted by hospital management for maximum effectiveness [271, 272, 17, 268, 273, 274, 275, 276].

MR-integrated radiotherapy (MR-IGRT) units represent a highly convenient and remarkably efficient method for meticulously delivering therapy to precisely targeted body parts, while simultaneously providing high-quality imaging to significantly enhance the accurate localization of the treatment volume. These advanced and intricate systems uniquely merge the capabilities of magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) with the radiation therapy

delivery subsystems, enabling a sophisticated and dynamic two-way interaction that presents numerous technical challenges, each of which can potentially impact the overall quality, effectiveness, and reliability of the treatment process itself. Therefore, meticulous characterization and thorough performance testing of these systems are vital and indispensable components in ensuring not only the quality and clarity of the images produced but also the utmost safety of the procedures carried out during treatment. By focusing intently on these critical elements, practitioners can effectively optimize the utility and functionality of MR-IGRT, thereby ultimately improving patient outcomes and the overall efficacy of the treatment given. These advances mark a significant step forward in medical technology, emphasizing the importance of rigorous evaluation in clinical applications. [277, 278, 279, 280, 281]

One critical aspect of system evaluation that holds significant importance is the notion of pressential indication. Notably, changes exceeding 15% in the transmitter gain from the established baseline have the potential to signal underlying system problems that could seriously affect overall performance. While there are certain indications, such as oscillator instability, permanent magnet field drift, and errors in transmit gain calibration, that require solely routine preventative maintenance to ensure continued operation, there exist other more severe issues that are of much greater concern. These include component failures that may lead to performance disruptions, operational interruptions brought about by subsystem software disconnects that can compromise system integrity, and various additional challenges that necessitate more in-depth attention and intervention to prevent system degradation and maintain overall efficiency. The complexity of monitoring such parameters is imperative to ensure that the system functions optimally and that any drift or fluctuation is promptly addressed to avoid potential long-term consequences [282, 283, 284, 285, 286, 287, 288].

6.1 Safety Protocols and Guidelines

MRI safety protocols are critically important for ensuring both patient and staff well-being throughout the entire imaging process. These comprehensive guidelines encompass a wide array of crucial aspects, which include thorough and meticulous patient and worker screening procedures, as well as clear and well-defined zone restrictions to maintain safety. Furthermore, it is essential to have classifications of all equipment utilized within the imaging environment, strong established emergency procedures, and a firm commitment to ongoing education and training for all personnel involved in the imaging process. By adhering strictly and diligently to these well-crafted protocols, the risk of incidents can be significantly minimized,

allowing for a safer and more efficient MRI experience for everyone involved. Such attention to detail in safety measures not only protects patients and staff but also enhances the overall quality of care provided during these critical imaging sessions [289, 290, 291, 292, 293].

The very first and most critical safety measure that is diligently, carefully, and thoroughly implemented in the MRI environment is the comprehensive and rigorous pre-MRI screening process. This essential process meticulously confirms that only individuals who have been thoroughly approved and deemed completely safe will be granted access to the potentially hazardous and sensitive MRI environment. The pre-MRI screening involves multiple steps, including detailed questionnaires, interviews, and sometimes physical assessments to ensure that each individual poses no risk when entering this specialized area. For units that inherently operate under the advanced specifications of 7 Tesla, the safety management aspect is effectively handled through an organized, systematic zoning system that carefully segregates the entire facility into distinct, welldefined areas each devoted to specific functions. This strategic arrangement also encompasses safety measures necessary for ensuring the well-being of both patients and staff. Each of these areas features progressive levels of access control to ascertain maximum safety and security for both the patients and the staff members working diligently within the MRI facility. In addition to this, signage that is strategically placed and clearly visible throughout the facility, coupled with securely locked doors and access points, firmly reinforces these critical physical boundaries. These measures ensure that the safety protocols are adhered to at all times without exception and are communicated effectively. This comprehensive and multilayered safety process not only minimizes potential risks inherent in the operational environment but also actively promotes a secure, safe, and welcoming atmosphere for everyone present. As a result, this environment fosters a strong sense of trust and reliability among patients and staff alike, establishing a cornerstone for excellence in care and safety standards within the MRI suite [257, 294, 265, 295, 270, 296, 297]

In parallel, the American College of Radiology has developed a well-defined and comprehensive equipment classification scheme that effectively delineates medical devices and consumables into three distinct categories: MR-Safe, MR-Conditional, and MR-Unsafe. MR-Safe items are constructed entirely from non-ferromagnetic materials, which ensures that they present no known risk to patients during magnetic resonance imaging procedures. However, any mislabeling or improper classification of these items raises the

significant hazard of projectile injuries, particularly within the potent magnetic field of MRI machines, which can attract ferromagnetic objects with great force. For contrast media utilized in the imaging process, gadolinium chelates have emerged as the preferred agents due to their remarkable ability to provide improved visualization for lesion detection and characterization during various diagnostic procedures, enhancing the accuracy and effectiveness of medical imaging [298, 299, 300, 301, 302, 303].

Occupational safety training constitutes an absolutely essential and critical component for all personnel and staff who work within MRI environments. Comprehensive education is strongly recommended on an annual basis to ensure that every MRI staff member not only maintains but also enhances their proficiency and competence in this specialized and intricate field. This training should thoroughly cover various crucial topics, which include the fundamental physics of magnetic resonance, the health effects related to exposure, particularly those risks and concerns associated with static field exposure, as well as established emergency procedures that are vital for ensuring the highest levels of safety. Emergency response plans must comprehensively address multiple potential scenarios such as fires, incidents of cardiac arrest, and quenching events, emphasizing that any personnel who proceed into restricted zones must possess an adequate understanding of the underlying risks and hazards associated with those specific areas. Protective measures, including the appropriate and correct use of personal protective equipment (PPE), are mandated for all activities conducted within the most hazardous zone IV to ensure the utmost safety of everyone involved. It is absolutely crucial for everyone to be well-informed and rigorously trained in these vital aspects to foster a safe working environment [271, 304, 305, 261, 306, 307].

6.2 Quality Control Measures

Quality control (QC) tests are administered on a regular basis to ascertain that the MRI system consistently performs within the intended operational limits and standards expected in medical imaging. The QC measurements that meticulously monitor the stability of an MRI system's performance must effectively detect any variations or deviations that could potentially affect the overall image quality, precision, and diagnostic accuracy. Maintaining stringent QC protocols is vital for ensuring diagnostic reliability, upholding patient safety, and fostering confidence in the imaging results provided to medical professionals. Regular assessments and stringent procedures help in identifying issues before they escalate, ultimately contributing to improved healthcare outcomes [308, 109, 309, 310, 311].

QC procedures have been meticulously developed by various authoritative organizations that play pivotal roles in healthcare and technology sectors. These organizations include the highly regarded U.S. Food and Drug Administration, the esteemed International Electrotechnical Commission, the influential International Organization for Standardization, the American Association of Physicists in Medicine (AAPM), and the Joint Commission for the Accreditation of Healthcare Organizations. In the United States, a comprehensive Quality Assurance (QA) program was successfully launched by the American College of Radiology (ACR) back in 1987, marking a significant milestone in healthcare quality management. This important initiative was established based on the pioneering availability of the ACR MRI accreditation phantom, which serves as a standardized and vital tool for quality assessment in the MRI imaging field. Additionally, the AQA program significantly addresses a wide range of different issues and concerns associated with various components of MRI systems; this comprehensive and informative booklet includes not only updated but also detailed instructions for performing essential QC tests systematically. This thorough approach ensures that all aspects of MR imaging are adequately evaluated to guarantee optimal patient safety, enhance diagnostic accuracy, and uphold the highest standards of care in medical imaging practices [312, 313, 314, 315, 316, 317]

To fulfill the diverse and specific requirements of both QA and regulatory personnel in a systematic and efficient manner, a comparatively large and comprehensive amount of data dedicated to the thorough and meticulous testing of all monitored parameters must be systematically stored in an organized manner. This storage not only facilitates detailed and thorough retrospective examinations but also provides the necessary data for eventual reporting that is crucial for compliance and ongoing quality assurance. The data that is collected regarding quality control (QC) is instrumental for daily evaluations and assessments of the MRI system. This translates into the understanding that expansive data archives should be minimized effectively to ensure operational efficiency and practicality across the board. To address this pressing issue, a sophisticated and advanced system designed specifically for automatic quality control is introduced. This innovative system, which requires minimal intervention and involvement from the MRI operator, effectively deduces, archives, and manages the essential and critical image-quality parameters. At the same time, it automatically generates comprehensive reports that prominently highlight any unacceptable deviations from monitored parameters while also providing confirmations of adherence to the stringent ACR quality control criteria. This cutting-edge automated system has undergone rigorous and extensive testing on a clinical MRI scanner. It employs the ACR accreditation phantom meticulously for the acquisition of robust and reliable QC images, ensuring the highest standards are met at all times [318, 319, 320, 109, 321, 322].

Since modifications in transmitter gain can often signify the existence of additional systemic issues or may simply reflect recent alterations made in the hardware or software components, it has been compellingly proposed that a heightened level of vigilance should be exercised by operators and technicians in order to uphold the stability of this crucial metric on MR units. MR-guided radiation therapy represents a remarkable fusion of cutting-edge MR imaging technology along with highly conformal radiation delivery techniques, which together create an enhanced and robust strategy specifically aimed at addressing a diverse array of disease sites and conditions. Through the effective use of MR guidance, clinicians gain invaluable access to real-time visualization of soft-tissue targets without the inherent risks typically associated with ionizing radiation exposure. Additionally, the role of adaptive radiotherapy workflows is essential in this context; they facilitate the efficient modification and adjustment of treatment plans, thereby accommodating interfractional anatomic changes that may occur over the course of an extended therapy regimen. This strategic combination of advanced imaging modalities and adaptive treatment planning not only significantly improves the precision of radiation delivery but also serves to optimize the overall effectiveness of cancer treatment, ensuring that better outcomes are achieved for patients who are grappling with a variety of challenging medical conditions [323, 324, 325, 326, 327, 328].

Due to the intricate and complex nature of the MR-IGRT system, it has become increasingly clear that preventative maintenance, routine quality control testing, and regular calibration practices-specifically, at least on a monthly basis-are absolutely critical for ensuring that the system operates correctly, as expected, and as intended. Many of the technical issues continually faced by these sophisticated integrated machines, which directly affect the quality and overall reliability of the radiation delivery platform, can often be traced back to the individual components that make up the whole system. Indeed, hardware failures involving multiple components and subsystems, coupled with disconnects and lapses in communication among the various system subsystems, have consistently been at the core of numerous interruptions in clinical workflow. These interruptions can lead to significant breakdowns in operations, which in turn can affect patient care. During particularly the early commissioning phases and the initial clinical

release of the MR-IGRT devices, there existed very little redundancy within the systems. In many scenarios, this resulted in a critical single-point failure, which was notably problematic. Such a failure could take both the MR imaging system and LINAC offline at the same time, thereby disrupting treatment schedules and adversely affecting patient outcomes. Valuable lessons learned from ongoing quality assurance research and experience enable these systems to now deliver more reliable, high-quality treatments. As a result, systems are now achieving higher machine uptime, improved patient throughput, and greater overall efficiency, all of which greatly benefit the overall clinical environment and enhance the standard of care provided to patients. [277, 329, 330, 331, 332, 333, 334]

Emerging Trends in MRI Technology

A few essential topics that could not be covered comprehensively are also indicated in this text. One significant topic relates to emerging computing paradigms that are revolutionizing the field. An exponential rise in computing power during the last two decades has had a profound and deeply transformative impact on the engineering development of MR scanners. The ability to handle vast amounts of signal-processing, reconstruction, and simulation data can now be efficiently managed with the help of highperformance computers. Additionally, cloud services for high-performance computing are also becoming increasingly available and accessible. These cloud infrastructures allow remote electrical sources to be sophisticated enough to carry out complex calculations even from afar. Such a tremendous computational capacity can now be seamlessly integrated into a cloud environment, and this innovative scheme enables interaction through a locally connected device, enhancing accessibility. Consequently, the data flow paradigm for MR studies is set to change dramatically. New user interfaces like smartphones are poised to facilitate innovative interactions with scanners, potentially supporting the development of a diverse array of new applications and functionalities. The introduction of cutting-edge sensing-device technology and advanced big-data processing, when combined with functional imaging techniques, will also pave the way for the creation of advanced MR scanners equipped with significantly enhanced functionalities. Features such as automated patient-motion monitoring, detection of physiological signals, speech monitoring, and vital-sign monitoring, as well as devices designed for delivering stimuli to patients, can collectively work to increase scan fidelity and accuracy. Furthermore, these enhanced features have the potential to reduce service costs substantially by alleviating the daily workload of clinical staff and greatly simplifying existing scan protocols. Despite the ongoing challenges posed by the COVID-19 pandemic, substantial expansion in MR engineering products and increased short-term sales have been observed, which can be attributed, at least in part, to the heightened research demands brought about by the global health crisis [64, 34, 335, 336, 337, 338]

Another crucial topic that warrants attention is the potential future exploration of MRI technology, particularly as this electromagnetic field is rapidly evolving into one of the most promising frontiers for innovation within the realms of 21st-century science and technology. The range of topics being investigated includes significant advancements in ultra-high-field MR systems operating at 7 T and above, alongside the development of ultra-low-field MR devices that are specifically designed for both brain imaging and low-cost body profile monitoring. Esteemed professional organizations such as the IEC, MHRA, and FDA are actively initiating comprehensive studies focused on establishing exposure guidelines for MRI procedures, as well as launching initiatives like the Safe Innovation Accelerator Program Furthermore, recent advances in scan speed hold immense potential to enhance a myriad of MRI applications, with innovative solutions such as k-tbased parallel imaging techniques paving the way for real-time imaging capabilities. In addition, real-time compressed-sensing methodologies are enabling the simultaneous quantification of multiple parameters, which promises to significantly boost the efficiency and effectiveness of MRI diagnostics in various clinical and research scenarios [304, 339, 340, 341, 342, 343, 344].

7.1 High-Field MRI Systems

The introduction of advanced magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) systems that feature static magnetic fields of 7 tesla (T) or higher during the past decade has led to noteworthy and significant improvements in signal-tonoise ratio (SNR) and spatial resolution. This remarkable enhancement in SNR not only facilitates more accurate detection of subtle signals but also allows for the observation of much finer spatial details. Such improvements, in turn, significantly enhance the characterization and assessment of various tissues and organs within the body. As a direct result of these advancements, 7 T MRI has firmly established itself as the preferred modality for a broad range of applications, which includes neuroimaging, musculoskeletal imaging, and metabolic spectroscopy. The ongoing certification process for human whole-body 7 T MRI machines that are intended for clinical diagnostics is progressing very well, and the routine implementation of clinical 7 T MRI examinations is eagerly anticipated and looked forward to in the near future. These advancements unequivocally represent a crucial leap forward in the capabilities of diagnostic imaging, paving the way for better patient outcomes and enhanced medical research opportunities [19, 17, 20, 16, 345, 336]

High-field MRI systems function at significantly higher magnetic fields (B0), which leads to a notable enhancement in image resolution for

applications in microscopy. This also yields more dependable data for spectroscopy, where the benefits are derived from an increase in spectral dispersion and heightened sensitivity that is directly proportional to the square of B0 (B0²). Even though these advancements bring forth considerable advantages, there are several essential factors that must be taken account, particularly concerning the electromagnetic characteristics of different materials and the operational behavior of RF coils. Unlike their behavior at 3 T, where RF coils typically operate in a quasi-static regime, at magnetic field strengths of 7 T and above, the coils start to act like antennas. This transition leads to the spreading of feeding power across large portions of the patient's body, raising important considerations regarding patient safety and image quality. In most standard clinical MRI systems, practitioners often rely on a large birdcage RF coil for excitation purposes. This design facilitates a homogeneous and effective energy transfer throughout the entire body, thereby enabling the use of large fields of view, which is especially beneficial in imaging regions like the abdomen or thigh, where comprehensive assessments are often required. Thus, navigating the complexities of high-field MRI technology is crucial for maximizing its potential benefits while ensuring optimal performance and patient care [346, 347, 223, 209, 348].

7.2 Portable MRI Devices

MRI technology provides crucial volumetric, functional, and diffusion imaging biomarkers that are essential in both clinical and research settings. Although there is a wide range of other brain imaging technologies that are currently active areas of development, MRI stands out as one of the most widely utilized imaging techniques available today. Current efforts to enhance its accessibility across a diverse array of locations shows great promise in significantly expanding its clinical and research applications even further. One promising approach in this regard is the development of portable MRI devices, which provide an important avenue toward achieving this goal of increased accessibility. Several noteworthy examples of highly portable and accessible MRI technologies exhibit variability in their field strength, resolution, intended applications, cost, and ease of use. These innovative devices are already being employed for various purposes, including clinical assessments, research projects, and educational initiativesa versatile usage model that frequently involves transferring gathered data to cloud servers for in-depth analysis. In addition, this process may incorporate advanced AI and machine learning methodologies in one or more phases of data acquisition, analysis, and image construction, thereby enhancing the overall process and outcome. Typically, the operation of these sophisticated machines is managed by a trained technician or another qualified professional; however, the user-friendly design of many portable MRI devices often allows them to be operated by any individual who is capable of handling the device. This significant advancement broadens access to MRI technology and creates additional scholarly opportunities for a wider audience. The prospect of expanding who can conduct MRI research holds tremendous potential benefits, both in terms of the rich knowledge that can be generated and in providing increased access for participants involved in studies [349, 350, 351, 352, 353, 354, 355, 356].

7.3 Artificial Intelligence in MRI

Expert-based design of an advanced artificial intelligence (AI) architecture that closely mimics expert knowledge and function is fundamentally grounded in the early pioneering work conducted on artificial neural networks, evolutionary algorithms, and fuzzy logic systems. To this day, AI systems that play an increasingly prominent consultant role are capable of effectively parsing through complex medical images to reveal subtle anomalies and report their findings in a natural language format, without the intention of wholly replacing the attending radiologist. Growing considerable interest has been directed towards the development of an AIassisted radiology decision support system, aimed at minimizing potential errors in the identification and reporting of various brain pathologies. This comprehensive work meticulously surveyed the significant progress made in research focused on image processing techniques for the thorough analysis of brain pathologies, encompassing both the methodological and technical features of sophisticated image processing, as well as advanced techniques aimed at reliably classifying and diagnosing MRI images of the human brain. The design requirements for a radiology decision support system bear a notable resemblance to the requirements encountered in other autonomous systems. The ongoing creation of robust AI architectures, capable of effectively serving as medical assistants to the attending radiologists, involves addressing several complex software engineering challenges while employing substantial domain knowledge regarding images that significantly exceed existing conventions, also ensuring they are adequately trained utilizing limited datasets, which presents a series of feasible but challenging tasks. Achieving robust image processing and comprehensive analysis requires extensive and thorough testing, whereby a considerable amount of image data must be systematically collected from a diverse range of subjects, utilizing various instrumentation and protocols. Several notable open-source projects have specifically been dedicated to the development of pivotal support tools for medical image processing and analysis. Some of the implemented software has demonstrated effectiveness in the engineering of tools specifically leveraged through the capabilities of machine learning. As powerful AI algorithms continue to advance, they are beginning to approach or, in some instances, even exceed the level of human performance in limited but crucial tasks such as natural scene classification or precise object detection. These tasks present a unique opportunity to develop a sophisticated diagnostic tool capable of analyzing, detecting, and classifying various types of brain pathologies directly from MRI scans. The primary intent of such a transformative tool is not to replace the attending radiologist entirely, but rather to augment their diagnostic process substantially. This system aims to provide near zero-missed diagnoses through its repeatable and reproducible analysis of MRI images, ensuring that all findings are fully traceable and completely transparent to subsequent human revision and evaluation. This approach fosters a collaborative environment where human expertise is enhanced by the capabilities of advanced artificial intelligence technology [357, 358, 359, 360, 361, 362, 363, 364]

Future Directions in MRI Research

Future research is very likely to significantly strengthen and enhance the various existing technologies we have today, while also seeking to exploit and harness many recently discovered phenomena that hold a great deal of promise for the entire field. The continued development of innovative new mechanisms of contrast will provide invaluable access to truly novel and groundbreaking sources of information that were previously unavailable to researchers and practitioners alike. Additionally, the careful and informed selection of MRI parameters has the potential to either maintain the current existing acquisition times or, even better, shorten them further, which would make processes more efficient overall. Algorithmic advancements will undoubtedly transform our overall approach to data analysis and greatly enhance interaction with the scanner itself, a significant transformation that will be greatly enabled and facilitated by the rise of cloud computing and the widespread adoption of alternative user interfaces designed for ease of use. Furthermore, the design of innovative sensors and the implementation of improved signal processing techniques will dramatically expand the role of MRI beyond its traditional uses, potentially incorporating helpful features such as guidance and patient monitoring capabilities to increase its effectiveness and utility. Economic and societal concerns surrounding healthcare will offer a strong and necessary stimulus for the careful management of costs while also addressing the changing needs of an aging population that requires new solutions. Collaboration among manufacturers, physicists, radiologists, and technologists will prove to be absolutely essential not just for scientific progress but also in order to smoothly transition from mere advancements in technology to their routine and effective implementation in various healthcare settings, thereby ensuring better patient outcomes and comprehensive service delivery [365, 218, 366, 367, 368, 78]

Hyperpolarized MRI and new contrast materials are currently being actively researched and investigated. Early clinical systems have shown the ability to produce stunning 13C hyperpolarized images, utilizing specialized sequences that are purposefully designed for 13C or potentially other nuclei

as well. Recent research indicates a promising possibility of chemical shielding that could significantly enhance the information content of the socalled 'hyperpolarized' sequences. Various other available contrast materials are also being adapted for use within high field conditions, alongside the remarkable properties of the newly discovered elements phosphorus and silicon in imaging. With advancements in computer power and the utilization of cloud data centers, it is highly likely that data analysis and reinterpretation will undergo a transformative revolution. The wealth of information obtained from the scanner will be made accessible remotely, allowing for a neutral archive that will enable fast and accurate retrieval of data when needed. Different users, whether they are medical practitioners or researchers, and tools can directly access data within this system, effectively avoiding issues of data loss, duplication, and potential file format conflicts. As cloud infrastructure is maintained independently by specialist providers, it is expected that the associated costs will be considerably lower than those encountered with traditional hospital-based imaging centres. The nature of interaction with the MRI scanner will shift notably from the traditional use of buttons, jog-wheels, and text screens to a landscape dominated by alternative and consumer technology methods. Smartphones and tablet computers will have the ability to function alongside the scanner, effectively transmitting aggregated monitoring data directly to the console or sending scanner data to other locations as necessary. New examination types will be introduced, where the recipient - which could be the patient or other healthcare professionals - will be enabled to interact directly with the scanner itself. The advancements in sensor design and signal processing technologies will significantly expand the scope of current MRI capabilities. Adapted machines will be employed specifically for guidance of various medical procedures and for effective patient monitoring. Furthermore, sensitive data can be readily fed back to either a patient or the radiographer for the purpose of providing vital counselling or reassurance. This escalating demand for innovative sensors and fast computational methods will drive the emergence of new developments, which will be smoothly integrated into the scanner systems. Additionally, new pulse sequences are already being diligently developed, which will make use of a portion of the gradient scheme to provide intricate and valuable information regarding the distribution of the measured field [64, 147, 116, 369, 150, 370, 371, 223, 372]

8.1 Innovations in Imaging Techniques

To date, magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) has firmly established itself more than any other competing technologies as the premier method of choice that is capable of generating highly detailed images of the human body in a noninvasive manner. Current MRI technology can safely provide both standard morphological imagery and physiological functional images, capturing static anatomical details as well as dynamic processes within appropriate timeframes. However, it cannot always provide the complete range of imaging capabilities necessary for every possible scenario, duration, and specific condition that would be deemed ideal for each individual case. Because the anatomical and physiological data must be gathered efficiently and accurately, scanning protocols have to be uniquely tailored to each subject's needs; this gives rise to a strong and ongoing desire for achieving even higher resolution images while minimizing acquisition times. These increasing requirements fundamentally drive technical innovations in the field of MRI. MRI was first introduced in the early 1980s as an advanced clinical diagnostic device to visualize human anatomical structures in a noninvasive fashion. Since its inception, there has been significant development and evolution in MRI technology that has vastly improved its capabilities. Because MRI can be considered as an integrated technique, which consists of various components including data acquisition, image reconstruction, and hardware systems, progress achieved in each of these components interacts in ways that create exciting new opportunities for further advancement. Moreover, the recent incorporation of cutting-edge technologies from fundamental sciences such as computer science, along with sophisticated data processing techniques, has culminated in highly innovative applications that extend the functionality of MRI. Of particular importance to the realm of magnetic resonance research is MRI/S technology, which underpins nearly all new developments; advancements in this particular field have thus facilitated parallel progress in MR medical research that continues to evolve. Collaboration among MR researchers has played an essential role in the successful growth of MRI technology and its many clinical achievements over the years. As a comprehensive overview, this review addresses the substantial progress of MR systems technology, encompassing advancements in pulse sequences, image reconstruction, and multifaceted data analysis methods that have emerged throughout this time. [64, 34, 373, 374, 273, 375, 376, 225, 209]

8.2 MRI in Personalized Medicine

MRI has found significant application in the evolving and rapidly growing field of personalized medicine, which fundamentally aims to deliver the right therapy tailored specifically for each individual patient in a customized manner. This innovative and pioneering approach focuses on the

careful and precise selection of susceptible patients before they undergo potentially toxic or financially burdensome treatments, thereby optimizing and enhancing the therapeutic interventions that can be utilized. In this personalized medicine framework, patients with similar clinical profiles and genetic characteristics are stratified into distinct groups that are statistically more likely to respond uniformly and favorably to a certain therapeutic option or treatment regimen. This thoughtful stratification enables clinicians to strategically target treatments more effectively, appropriately, and with a greater chance for success. In this regard, the remarkable and advanced ability of MR imaging to reveal specific biophysical properties of various tissues and to incorporate comprehensive and multifaceted data from models that represent the underlying anatomy and pathology is noteworthy and quite significant. Such impressive and cutting-edge capabilities may significantly reduce the uncertainty involved in accurately diagnosing a wide range of medical conditions, thereby enabling more precise and individualized treatment plans that can lead to better and improved patient outcomes. For instance, it may facilitate easier and more accurate decision-making regarding whether a particular lesion observed on imaging is malignant or benign, leading to timely, appropriate, and effective therapeutic action. Furthermore, Magnetic Resonance Fingerprinting (MRF) was first introduced in 2013 as a groundbreaking acquisition framework, which has completely transformed the field of MRI. It enables a rapid multiparametric quantitative characterization of both healthy and pathological tissues, thus substantially enhancing diagnostic accuracy and efficiency. Since that pivotal and influential introduction, numerous studies have rigorously examined highly efficient MRF pulse sequences, optimized acquisition parameters, innovative reconstruction algorithms, and advanced preprocessing techniques to improve signal processing and analysis. These technical advancements have collectively enabled the practical and widespread implementation of MRF across various magnetic field strengths, thus considerably broadening its applicability in clinical settings while providing invaluable and indispensable diagnostic information. Moreover, the growing availability of both simulated and experimental tissue properties has opened up new and exciting avenues in clinical diagnosis and has greatly facilitated more advanced computer-aided assessment of diagnostic results, ultimately providing a more comprehensive and nuanced understanding of tissue characteristics and their implications for patient care and treatment strategies [377, 129, 378, 379, 380, 381, 382, 383, 384]

Conclusion

Magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) stands out as a sophisticated medical imaging technique that offers high-resolution images accompanied by excellent soft-tissue contrast. This unique capability provides invaluable insights into both the morphology of tissues and the various physiological processes occurring within the body. To enhance its utility further, advanced techniques such as undersampled k-space data acquisitions, alongside innovations like compressed sensing and deep-learning reconstructions, have been actively developed and implemented to effectively reduce scan times as well as minimize artifacts. These advancements play a crucial role in increasing the accessibility of resources, improving patient comfort during the imaging process, and enabling the investigation of rapid or transient phenomena that may otherwise be overlooked. In addition to these notable advancements, Magnetic Resonance Fingerprinting (MRF) has emerged as a novel and innovative approach that significantly changes how multiple tissue properties can be acquired and estimated efficiently in a single, rapid scan. Although MRF is still considered a relatively new technique within the realm of medical imaging, it has witnessed remarkable progress in several critical areas, including pulse-sequence design, parameter optimization, and reconstruction methods. These developments have been instrumental in paving the way for potential clinical applications that could greatly enhance diagnostic capabilities and treatment planning. Despite the significant strides made in MRF technology, several challenges continue to hinder its widespread application, particularly in relation to certain magnetic field strengths and various regions of the body that present unique imaging challenges. This reality highlights the necessity for ongoing technological advancements and methodological research aimed at addressing these specific open problems. By tackling these issues head-on, the medical imaging community can contribute to the broader adoption of MRF for various biomedical imaging applications, which will ultimately result in improved patient diagnosis, care, and overall healthcare outcomes.

References

- J. Theerthagiri, K. Karuppasamy, S. J. Lee, et al., "Fundamentals and comprehensive insights on pulsed laser synthesis of advanced materials for diverse photo-and electrocatalytic applications," *Light: Science & Applications*, vol. 11, no. 1, 2022. nature.com
- 2. P. Stegmann, V. Daioglou, M. Londo, D. P. van Vuuren, "Plastic futures and their CO2 emissions," *Nature*, 2022. uu.nl
- 3. L. Pinto-Coelho, "How artificial intelligence is shaping medical imaging technology: a survey of innovations and applications," Bioengineering, 2023. mdpi.com
- H. Luo, J. Barrio, N. Sunny, A. Li, and L. Steier, "Progress and perspectives in photo-and electrochemical-oxidation of biomass for sustainable chemicals and hydrogen production," *Advanced Energy*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 5. D. Mourtzis, J. Angelopoulos, and N. Panopoulos, "A Literature Review of the Challenges and Opportunities of the Transition from Industry 4.0 to Society 5.0," Energies, 2022. mdpi.com
- R. Martínez-Peláez, A. Ochoa-Brust, S. Rivera, and V. G. Félix, "Role
 of digital transformation for achieving sustainability: mediated role of
 stakeholders, key capabilities, and technology," *Sustainability*, 2023.
 mdpi.com
- 7. D. Mateo, J. L. Cerrillo, S. Durini, and J. Gascon, "Fundamentals and applications of photo-thermal catalysis," Chemical Society Reviews, 2021. rsc.org
- 8. S. Shen, N. Koonjoo, X. Kong, and M. S. Rosen, "Gradient coil design and optimization for an ultra-low-field MRI system," *Applied Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2022, pp. 1-12, Springer. google.com
- Y. Shang, G. L. Simegn, K. Gillen, H. J. Yang, "Advancements in MR hardware systems and magnetic field control: B0 shimming, RF coils, and gradient techniques for enhancing magnetic resonance imaging and ...," 2024. oup.com
- 10. G. Ramos-Llordén, H. H. Lee, M. Davids, P. Dietz, et al., "Ultra-high gradient connectomics and microstructure MRI scanner for imaging of

- human brain circuits across scales," *Biomedical Engineering*, 2025. nature.com
- 11. M. Davids, P. Dietz, G. Ruyters, and M. Roesler, "Peripheral nerve stimulation informed design of a high-performance asymmetric head gradient coil," *Magnetic Resonance in Medicine*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 12. L. Marage, P. M. Walker, J. Boudet, and P. Fau, "Characterisation of a split gradient coil design induced systemic imaging artefact on 0.35 T MR-linac systems," *Physics in Medicine*, vol. 2022. hal.science
- 13. Q. Zhou, S. Fan, K. M. Lei, D. Ham, "Miniature Magnetic Resonance Imaging System for in situ Monitoring of Bacterial Growth and Biofilm Formation," IEEE Transactions on ..., 2024. [HTML]
- V. S Vassiliou, D. Cameron, S. K Prasad, and P. D Gatehouse, "Magnetic resonance imaging: Physics basics for the cardiologist," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- I. Khodarahmi and J. Fritz, "The value of 3 tesla field strength for musculoskeletal magnetic resonance imaging," Investigative Radiology, 2021. [HTML]
- 16. A. Radbruch, D. Paech, S. Gassenmaier, et al., "1.5 vs 3 Tesla magnetic resonance imaging: a review of favorite clinical applications for both field strengths-part 2," *Investigative Radiology*, vol. 56, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2021. [HTML]
- 17. F. Schick, C. C. Pieper, P. Kupczyk, "1.5 vs 3 Tesla magnetic resonance imaging: a review of favorite clinical applications for both field strengths-part 1," Investigative Radiology, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- B. Ittermann, H. E. Möller, A. M. Nagel, T. Niendorf, "Germany's journey toward 14 Tesla human magnetic resonance," Magnetic Resonance, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. Springer. springer.com
- T. Platt, M. E. Ladd, and D. Paech, "7 Tesla and beyond: advanced methods and clinical applications in magnetic resonance imaging," Investigative radiology, 2021. lww.com
- 20. C. Germann, D. Nanz, and R. Sutter, "Magnetic resonance imaging around metal at 1.5 Tesla: techniques from basic to advanced and clinical impact," Investigative Radiology, 2021. [HTML]
- 21. J. Glowacki, S. Hellmann, E. Webster, Z. Jaeger-Letts, "Discharge characteristics of a low-power applied-field magnetoplasmadynamic

- thruster in a tesla-level magnetic field," 2024. wgtn.ac.nz
- I. G. Ali, "Advancements and Applications of NMR and MRI Technologies in Medical Science: A Comprehensive Review," 2024.
 [PDF]
- A. S. Minhas and R. Oliver, "Magnetic resonance imaging basics," in *Quantitative Magnetic Resonance Imaging of Tissues*, 2022, Springer. [HTML]
- 24. F. Bruno, V. Granata, F. Cobianchi Bellisari, and F. Sgalambro, "Advanced magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) techniques: Technical principles and applications in nanomedicine," Cancers, vol. 14, no. 5, 2022. mdpi.com
- 25. D. Pradeep, M. K. Tembhre, A. S. Parihar, and C. Rao, "Magnetic resonance imaging: Basic principles and advancement in clinical and diagnostics approaches in health care," *Biomedical Imaging*, vol. 2022, Elsevier. [HTML]
- Ē. Kupče, L. Frydman, A. G. Webb, and J. R. J. Yong, "Parallel nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy," Nature Reviews, vol. 21, no. 1, 2021. ox.ac.uk
- 27. A. L. Lopez Kolkovsky, P. G. Carlier, B. Marty, et al., "Interleaved and simultaneous multi-nuclear magnetic resonance in vivo. Review of principles, applications and potential," NMR in Biomedicine, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 28. P. Saul, L. Schröder, A. B. Schmidt, "Nanomaterials for hyperpolarized nuclear magnetic resonance and magnetic resonance imaging," Wiley Interdisciplinary Reviews: Nanomedicine and Nanobiotechnology, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 29. M. Akcakaya, M. I. Doneva, and C. Prieto, "Magnetic resonance image reconstruction: theory, methods, and applications," 2022. [HTML]
- 30. K. E. Thomas, A. Fotaki, R. M. Botnar, "Imaging methods: magnetic resonance imaging," *Cardiovascular Imaging*, 2023. ahajournals.org
- 31. H. An and W. Lin, "Spin Density, T1, T2, T2* Relaxation and Bloch Equations," 2001. [PDF]
- 32. M. P. M. Letertre, P. Giraudeau, and P. De Tullio, "Nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy in clinical metabolomics and personalized medicine: current challenges and perspectives," Frontiers in Molecular, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org

- 33. Y. Wei, C. Yang, H. Jiang, Q. Li, F. Che, S. Wan, and S. Yao, "Multi-nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy: state of the art and future directions," Insights into, vol. 2022, Springer, 2022. springer.com
- 34. H. Kabasawa, "MR imaging in the 21st century: technical innovation over the first two decades," Magnetic resonance in medical sciences, 2022. jst.go.jp
- 35. S. Kwon, J. S. Hyeon, Y. Jung, L. Li, J. N. An, "Urine myo-inositol as a novel prognostic biomarker for diabetic kidney disease: a targeted metabolomics study using nuclear magnetic resonance," Kidney Research, vol. 2023. nih.gov
- 36. H. Xuesong, C. Pu, L. Jingyan, and X. Yupeng, "Commentary on the review articles of spectroscopy technology combined with chemometrics in the last three years," *Applied Spectroscopy*, vol. 2024, Taylor & Francis. [HTML]
- 37. S. L. Draper and E. R. McCarney, "Benchtop nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy in forensic chemistry," Magnetic Resonance in Chemistry, 2023. [HTML]
- 38. M. O. Dada and B. O. Awojoyogbe, "Fundamental physics of nuclear magnetic resonance," in *Molecular Magnetic Resonance Imaging for ...*, Springer, 2021. [HTML]
- 39. VB Mbayachi, ZY Tian, WK Dai, DA Ayejoto, "Nuclear Magnetic Resonance," in *Advanced Diagnostics in ...*, 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- M. Rashid, S. K. Singh, and C. Singh, "Nuclear magnetic resonance spectroscopy: theory and applications," in Modern Techniques of Spectroscopy, 2021, Springer. [HTML]
- 41. Y. Xia, "Essential concepts in MRI: physics, instrumentation, spectroscopy and imaging," 2022. [HTML]
- 42. A. Caglar Özen, E. Atalar, J. G. Korvink, and M. Bock, "In vivo MRI with Concurrent Excitation and Acquisition using Automated Active Analog Cancellation," 2018. [PDF]
- 43. A. Caglar Özen, E. Atalar, J. G. Korvink, and M. Bock, "In vivo MRI with Concurrent Excitation and Acquisition using Automated Active Analog Cancellation," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 44. S. N. Williams and P. McElhinney, "Ultra-high field MRI: parallel-transmit arrays and RF pulse design," *Physics in Medicine & Biology*, vol. 2023. iop.org

- Z. A. Colwell, L. DelaBarre, D. Idiyatullin, "Standalone RF Self-Interference Cancellation System for In-Vivo Simultaneous Transmit and Receive (STAR) MRI," IEEE Transactions on..., vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2023. nih.gov
- 46. D. Darnell, T. K. Truong, and A. W. Song, "Recent advances in radio-frequency coil technologies: flexible, wireless, and integrated coil arrays," *Journal of Magnetic Resonance*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. nih.gov
- 47. J. Hou, "Hardware Approaches for Enabling Multi-Channel Multinuclear MRI/MRS," 2024. tamu.edu
- 48. Y. Gao and X. Zhang, "Intrinsic temporal performance of the RF receive coil in magnetic resonance imaging," IEEE Transactions on Medical Imaging, 2022. [HTML]
- 49. D. L. de Lara, J. P. Stockmann, Q. Meng, B. Keil, et al., "A novel whole-head RF coil design tailored for concurrent multichannel brain stimulation and imaging at 3T," Brain Stimulation, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 50. K. Payne, Y. Zhao, A. A. Bhosale, et al., "Dual-Tuned Coaxial-Transmission-Line RF Coils for Hyperpolarized 13C and Deuterium 2H Metabolic MRS Imaging at Ultrahigh Fields," IEEE Transactions on ..., 2023. nih.gov
- 51. Y. Xu, E. G. Larsson, E. A. Jorswieck, and X. Li, "Distributed signal processing for extremely large-scale antenna array systems: State-of-the-art and future directions," IEEE Journal of ..., 2025. ieee.org
- 52. Q. Yang, A. Guerra, F. Guidi, N. Shlezinger, "Beam focusing for near-field multi-user localization," IEEE Transactions, 2025. [PDF]
- 53. M. N. Moussa and M. A. Madi, "Breast tumor detection, sizing and localization using a 24-element antenna array," IEEE Journal of Biomedical Engineering, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. [HTML]
- 54. N. AOUNALLAH, A. Yahiaoui, and I. Zegrir, "Study of the impact of very large-scale antennas on improving the performance of 5 and 6G wireless mobile networks," dspace.univ-ouargla.dz, . univ-ouargla.dz
- 55. E. Naviasky, L. Iotti, G. LaCaille, B. Nikolić, "A 71-to-86-GHz 16-element by 16-beam multi-user beamforming integrated receiver sub-array for massive MIMO," IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits, vol. 56, no. 8, pp. 1875-1885, 2021. [HTML]

- C. Cea, Z. Zhao, D. J. Wisniewski, G. D. Spyropoulos, et al., "Integrated internal ion-gated organic electrochemical transistors for stand-alone conformable bioelectronics," *Nature Materials*, vol. 2023. nature.com
- 57. C. X. Wang, J. Li, J. Huang, and C. Huang, "Modeling, Capacity Studies, Antenna and System Designs for 6G/B6G 3D Continuous-Space Radio Channels Enabled by Electromagnetic Information Theory," IEEE Surveys & Tutorials, 2025. [HTML]
- 58. X. Shu and W. Li, "Chemical decoding strategies for detecting RNA modifications, dynamics and structures," Chemical Communications, 2025. [HTML]
- B. Wang, Q. Li, Y. Du, Q. Wang, Z. Liang, M. Li, C. Huang, et al., "Ligand-mediated acid-activatable magnetic particle imaging probes for highly sensitive diagnosis of sepsis," Matter, 2025. [HTML]
- 60. Q. Pan, T. Qu, B. Tang, F. Shan, "A 0.5-mΩ/√hz dry-electrode bioimpedance interface with current mismatch cancellation and input impedance of 100 mΩ at 50 kHz," IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits, vol. 57, no. 1, pp. 123-134, 2022. [HTML]
- 61. H. Pu, O. Malekzadeh-Arasteh, et al., "A CMOS dual-mode brain-computer interface chipset with 2-mV precision time-based charge balancing and stimulation-side artifact suppression," IEEE Journal of Solid-State Circuits, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. [HTML]
- 62. H. Choi, S. I. Cheon, H. Kang, J. H. Suh, S. Park, S. J. Kweon, "Advancing Electrical Impedance Spectroscopy (EIS): Low-power, High-accuracy, Wide-dynamic-range, and High-throughput Impedance Measurement Circuits and ...", 2024. [HTML]
- 63. S. Song, X. Zhang, Y. Shen, and Y. Chen, "An Improved Correlation-Based Adaptive Joint Sparse Representation Algorithm for Multi-Channel Acoustic Emission Dynamic Detection of Rail Damage," Measurement, vol. 2025. [HTML]
- 64. H. Kabasawa, "MR Imaging in the 21st Century: Technical Innovation over the First Two Decades," 2021. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 65. D. C. Chang, "A new understanding on the history of developing MRI for cancer detection," arXiv preprint arXiv:2405.00053, 2024. [PDF]
- 66. G. Spagnuolo and P. Soltani, "Magnetic Resonance Imaging in digital dentistry: The start of a new era," Prosthesis, 2024. mdpi.com
- 67. S. Casini, "Images, Data-Visualization and the Narratives They Create:

- The Narrative Function of Images in Fostering MRI Innovation," Scientific Visual Representations in History, 2023. [HTML]
- 68. J. Hennig, "An evolution of low-field strength MRI," Magnetic Resonance Materials in Physics, Biology and Medicine, vol. 2023, Springer.springer.com
- 69. S. Casini, "Giving Bodies Back to Data: Image Makers, Bricolage, and Reinvention in Magnetic Resonance Technology," 2021. [HTML]
- 70. M. J. Graves, "Shadows and signals: a brief history of medical imaging," Journal of Physics: Conference Series, 2024. iop.org
- 71. A. Saleem, "Design and optimization of a magnet pole for Magnetic Resonant Imaging," 2018. [PDF]
- 72. A. Bhowmik, M. Singh, and R. Singh, "Medical Imaging of the Human Body Fluids: Principles and Diagnostics," in *Biofluid Dynamics of Human Body*, 2025. [HTML]
- 73. S. D. Serai, "Basics of magnetic resonance imaging and quantitative parameters T1, T2, T2*, T1rho and diffusion-weighted imaging," Pediatric radiology, 2022. [HTML]
- 74. M. Kennedy and A. Turner, "Principles of magnetic resonance imaging," in *Medicine and Molecular Imaging-E-Book*, 2022. [HTML]
- 75. B. O. Awojoyogbe and M. O. Dada, "Fundamental Quantum Mechanical Dynamics in Computational Magnetic Resonance Imaging from Low Field to High Field," in *Molecular Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 76. B. Gruber, M. Froeling, T. Leiner, and D. W.J. Klomp, "RF coils: A practical guide for nonphysicists," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 77. N. Gudino and S. Littin, "Advancements in gradient system performance for clinical and research MRI," Journal of Magnetic Resonance Imaging, 2023. [HTML]
- 78. S. D. Serai, M. L. Ho, M. Artunduaga, S. S. Chan, et al., "Components of a magnetic resonance imaging system and their relationship to safety and image quality," *Pediatric Radiology*, vol. 51, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2021. [HTML]
- 79. B. Zhang, K. Wang, and T. Jiang, "RF power design optimization in MRI system," Magnetic Resonance Letters, 2021. sciencedirect.com

- 80. W. E. Kwok, "Basic principles of and practical guide to clinical MRI radiofrequency coils," RadioGraphics, 2022. rsna.org
- 81. A. Webb and T. O'Reilly, "Tackling SNR at low-field: a review of hardware approaches for point-of-care systems," *Magnetic Resonance Materials in Physics, Biology*, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 82. A. LABBÉ and M. POIRIER-QUINOT, "Radiofrequency Coils: Theoretical Principles and Practical Guidelines," in *The Challenges of MRI*, 2024. [HTML]
- 83. R. Barta, "Receive Radio-Frequency Coils for a Parallel B0 Linac-MR," 2023. ualberta.ca
- 84. S. M. E. Jungst, "A 24 Channel Radio Frequency Receive Array for Functional Magnetic Resonance Imaging at 10.5 Tesla," 2023. umn.edu
- 85. G. Giovannetti, F. Frijia, and A. Flori, "Radiofrequency coils for low-field (0.18–0.55 T) magnetic resonance scanners: experience from a research lab–manufacturing companies cooperation," Electronics, 2022. mdpi.com
- 86. F. Ebadollahi-Somee, "Radio Frequency Power Amplifiers Adapted For Low Field Magnetic Resonance Imaging," 2023. usask.ca
- 87. G. Giovannetti and F. Frijia, "Use of the Perturbing Sphere Method for the Estimation of Radiofrequency Coils' Efficiency in Magnetic Resonance Applications: Experience from an ...," Sensors, 2024. mdpi.com
- 88. S. Jungst, "A 24-channel radio frequency receive array for magnetic resonance imaging of primates at 10.5 T," 2023. umn.edu
- J. 1983- Bosshard, "Highly Parallel Magnetic Resonance Imaging with a Fourth Gradient Channel for Compensation of RF Phase Patterns," 2013. [PDF]
- 90. G. Scardino, G. Scicchitano, M. Chirivì, and P. J. M. Costa, "Convolutional neural network and optical flow for the assessment of wave and tide parameters from video analysis (leucotea): An innovative tool for coastal ...," Remote Sensing, 2022. mdpi.com
- 91. J. Isern-Fontanet, E. García-Ladona, C. González-Haro, "High-Resolution Ocean Currents from Sea Surface Temperature Observations: The Catalan Sea (Western Mediterranean)," Remote Sensing, vol. 2021. mdpi.com

- 92. D. Luis and M. E. MacDonald, "Emission spectroscopy characterization of electrode species in the freestream flow at the NASA Ames miniature Arc Jet II facility," *Journal of Quantitative Spectroscopy and Radiative Transfer*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 93. S. Zhang, H. M. Li, G. X. Li, J. Z. Wu et al., "Electrical ignition characteristics and combustion emission spectra of continuous-flow ADN-based liquid propellant," Fuel, 2026. [HTML]
- 94. L. Acuna, M. Deleuil, and O. Mousis, "Interior-atmosphere modelling to assess the observability of rocky planets with JWST," Astronomy & Astrophysics, 2023. aanda.org
- 95. P. Torres-Ferrera, G. Rizzelli, A. Nespola, and others, "Statistical analysis of 100 Gbps per wavelength SWDM VCSEL-MMF data center links on a large set of OM3 and OM4 fibers," *Journal of Lightwave Technology*, vol. 40, no. 12, pp. 3446-3455, 2022. core.ac.uk
- 96. Y. Wu, S. F. Liu, H. Jiang, and S. Nayakshin, "Observability of Substructures in the Planet-forming Disk in the (Sub) centimeter Wavelength with SKA and ngVLA," The Astrophysical Journal, 2024. iop.org
- 97. K. H. Cho, S. M. Huang, C. H. Choi, M. J. Chen et al., "Development, integration and use of an ultra-high-strength gradient system on a human-size 3 T magnet for small animal MRI," 2019. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 98. P. T. Krishnan, A. N. Joseph Raj, and V. Rajangam, "Emotion classification from speech signal based on empirical mode decomposition and non-linear features: Speech emotion recognition," Complex & Intelligent Systems, 2021. springer.com
- 99. Y. Yang, J. Seong, M. Choi, J. Park, G. Kim, "Integrated metasurfaces for re-envisioning a near-future disruptive optical platform," Light: Science & Applications, vol. 12, no. 1, 2023. nature.com
- 100.R. Baines, S. K. Patiballa, J. Booth, L. Ramirez, T. Sipple, "Multi-environment robotic transitions through adaptive morphogenesis," Nature, 2022. [HTML]
- 101.D. Xu, X. Xiao, J. Liu, and S. Sui, "Spatio-temporal degradation modeling and remaining useful life prediction under multiple operating conditions based on attention mechanism and deep learning," Reliability Engineering & System Safety, 2023. [HTML]
- 102.V. Menon, "20 years of the default mode network: A review and

- synthesis," Neuron, 2023. cell.com
- 103.J. C. Pang, K. M. Aquino, M. Oldehinkel, P. A. Robinson, "Geometric constraints on human brain function," Nature, 2023. nature.com
- 104.L. Poorter, L. Amissah, F. Bongers, I. Hordijk, et al., "Successional theories," *Biological*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 105.K. M. Hampson, R. Turcotte, and D. T. Miller, "Adaptive optics for high-resolution imaging," *Nature Reviews*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 106.K. Lin, M. Wang, Y. Wang, H. Li, and W. Wang, "A multi-channel MRI console for ultra-high field up to 14 T," *Review of Scientific Instruments*, 2025. [HTML]
- 107.C. Z. Cooley, P. C. McDaniel, J. P. Stockmann, et al., "A portable scanner for magnetic resonance imaging of the brain," *Nature Biomedical Engineering*, vol. 5, no. 8, pp. 1-10, 2021. nih.gov
- 108.S. Sotardi, C. Flowers, E. Larsen, M. Sinti-Ycochea, "Creating a Cyberattack Plan for Radiology Operations: A Practical Pediatric Perspective," College of Radiology, 2025. [HTML]
- 109.C. K. Glide-Hurst, E. S. Paulson, K. McGee, et al., "Task group 284 report: magnetic resonance imaging simulation in radiotherapy: considerations for clinical implementation, optimization, and quality assurance," *Medical Physics*, vol. 48, no. 10, pp. 1-15, 2021. wiley.com
- 110.J. M. Algarín, T. Guallart-Naval, J. Borreguero, "MaRGE: A graphical environment for MaRCoS," Journal of Magnetic, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 111.S. Padarthi, A. Prabakar, and S. R. Deshpande, "Affordable, state-of-the-art, magnetic resonance imaging scanners: Design and manufacturing insights," NMR in Biomedicine, vol. 2024, Wiley Online Library. [HTML]
- 112.Y. Ren, "Signal-to-Noise Ratio and Contrast-to-Noise Ratio Comparisons Between a Wireless Volume Radiofrequency Coil and a Commercially Available Wired ...," 2025. uwinnipeg.ca
- 113.A. Gupta, T. Stait-Gardner, and W. S. Price, "Is it time to forgo the use of the terms 'spin-lattice' and 'spin-spin' relaxation in NMR and MRI?" The Journal of Physical Chemistry, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. [HTML]

- 114.N. E. Hänninen, T. Liimatainen, M. Hanni, O. Gröhn, and others, "Relaxation anisotropy of quantitative MRI parameters in biological tissues," *Scientific Reports*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022. nature.com
- 115.S. Alzola-Aldamizetxebarria and L. Fernández-Méndez, "A comprehensive introduction to magnetic resonance imaging relaxometry and contrast agents," ACS Publications, 2022. acs.org
- 116.J. Eills, D. Budker, S. Cavagnero, E. Y. Chekmenev, "Spin hyperpolarization in modern magnetic resonance," Chemical Reviews, vol. 2023, ACS Publications. acs.org
- 117.E. B. Karlsson, "Internal dynamics in condensed matter, as studied by spin relaxation: some examples from 75 years," The European Physical Journal H, 2022. springer.com
- 118.A. Truszkiewicz, D. Bartusik-Aebisher, Ł. Wojtas, "Neural Network in the Analysis of the MR Signal as an Image Segmentation Tool for the Determination of T1 and T2 Relaxation Times with Application to ...,"

 International Journal of ..., 2023. mdpi.com
- 119.N. Robinson, E. F. May, and M. L. Johns, "Low-field functional group resolved nuclear spin relaxation in mesoporous silica," *ACS Applied Materials & Interfaces*, vol. 13, no. 1, pp. 123-131, 2021. [HTML]
- 120.I. Jerkovic and G. Cavalli, "Understanding 3D genome organization by multidisciplinary methods," Nature reviews Molecular cell biology, 2021, hal.science
- 121.Z. Zhao, H. Cui, and H. Cui, "Decoding tissue complexity: multiscale mapping of chemistry–structure–function relationships through advanced visualization technologies," Journal of Materials Chemistry B, 2025. [HTML]
- 122.H. Wang, X. Meng, and Y. Zhang, "Biomolecular Interaction Prediction: The Era of AI," Advanced Science, 2025. wiley.com
- 123.S. M. Lewis, M. L. Asselin-Labat, Q. Nguyen, J. Berthelet, et al., "Spatial omics and multiplexed imaging to explore cancer biology," *Nature*, 2021. google.com
- 124.S. R. Choi and M. Lee, "Transformer architecture and attention mechanisms in genome data analysis: a comprehensive review," Biology, 2023. mdpi.com
- 125.M. A. Farooq, S. Gao, M. A. Hassan, Z. Huang, A. Rasheed, "Artificial intelligence in plant breeding," Trends in Genetics, 2024. cell.com

- 126.G. Kim, S. Lee, E. Levy Karin, H. Kim, Y. Moriwaki, et al., "Easy and accurate protein structure prediction using ColabFold," *Nature*, 2025. nsf.gov
- 127.A. Nasser, "The Merging of Quantum Physics: An Interdisciplinary Scientific Review," Preprint, . researchgate.net
- 128. Y. L. Ying, Z. L. Hu, S. Zhang, Y. Qing, A. Fragasso, et al., "Nanopore-based technologies beyond DNA sequencing," *Nature*, vol. 2022. nature.com
- 129.A. Monga, D. Singh, H. L. de Moura, X. Zhang et al., "Emerging Trends in Magnetic Resonance Fingerprinting for Quantitative Biomedical Imaging Applications: A Review," 2024. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 130.S. Alzola-Aldamizetxebarria, L. Fernández-Méndez, D. Padro, J. Ruíz-Cabello et al., "A Comprehensive Introduction to Magnetic Resonance Imaging Relaxometry and Contrast Agents," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 131.S. K. M Shadekul Islam, M. D. Abdullah Al Nasim, I. Hossain, D. Md Azim Ullah et al., "Introduction of Medical Imaging Modalities," 2023. [PDF]
- 132.K. Huang, X. Lin, Y. Luo, Q. Hu, B. Guo, and F. Ouyang, "Image quality and evaluation ability of magnetic resonance imaging techniques for thyroid-associated ophthalmopathy: Dixon fat-suppression technique vs. spectral ...," Frontiers in ..., vol. 2023. frontiersin.org
- 133.H. Wei, J. H. Yoon, S. K. Jeon, J. W. Choi, J. Lee, and J. H. Kim, "Enhancing gadoxetic acid—enhanced liver MRI: a synergistic approach with deep learning CAIPIRINHA-VIBE and optimized fat suppression techniques," *Radiology*, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 134.L. Cao, X. Liu, T. Qu, Y. Cheng, J. Li, Y. Li, L. Chen, and X. Niu, "Improving spatial resolution and diagnostic confidence with thinner slice and deep learning image reconstruction in contrast-enhanced abdominal CT," *Radiology*, vol. 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 135.B. Ondrejová, V. Rajťúková, K. Šavrtková, A. Galajdová, "Analysis of MRI Artifacts Induced by Cranial Implants in Phantom Models," Healthcare, 2025. mdpi.com
- 136.P. Reschke, J. Gotta, L. D. Gruenewald, A. Ait Bachir, et al., "Deep learning in knee MRI: A prospective study to enhance efficiency, diagnostic confidence and sustainability," Radiology, 2025. sciencedirect.com

- 137.V. Patel, A. Wang, A. P. Monk, and M. T. Y. Schneider, "Enhancing Knee MR Image Clarity through Image Domain Super-Resolution Reconstruction," Bioengineering, 2024. mdpi.com
- 138.R. Shimada, K. Sofue, Y. Ueno, T. Wakayama, "Utility of thin-slice fatsuppressed single-shot T2-weighted MR imaging with deep learning image reconstruction as a protocol for evaluating the pancreas," *Magnetic Resonance in Medical*, vol. 2024. jst.go.jp
- 139.T. Hilbert, P. Omoumi, M. Raudner, and T. Kober, "Synthetic contrasts in musculoskeletal MRI: a review," Investigative radiology, 2023. [HTML]
- 140.YJ Ma, D. Moazamian, DM Cornfeld, "Understanding and performance of clinical MRI using tissue property filters and the central contrast theorem, MASDIR pulse sequences and synergistic contrast MRI," *Imaging in Medicine*, vol. 2022. nih.gov
- 141.J. C. Hsu, Z. Tang, O. E. Eremina, A. M. Sofias, et al., "Nanomaterial-based contrast agents," *Nature Reviews*, 2023. nih.gov
- 142.M. Li, L. Liu, J. Qi, Y. Qiao, H. Zeng, W. Jiang, R. Zhu, "MRI-based machine learning models predict the malignant biological behavior of meningioma," BMC Medical, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 143.M. Park, I. Park, C. K. Hong, S. H. Kim et al., "Differences in stromal component of chordoma are associated with contrast enhancement in MRI and differential gene expression in RNA sequencing," Scientific reports, 2022. nature.com
- 144.X. Wang, Y. Dai, H. Lin, J. Cheng, Y. Zhang, and M. Cao, "Shape and texture analyses based on conventional MRI for the preoperative prediction of the aggressiveness of pituitary adenomas," *European Journal of Radiology*, vol. 2023, Springer. [HTML]
- 145.M. A. Bahloul, S. Jabeen, S. Benoumhani, "Advancements in synthetic CT generation from MRI: A review of techniques, and trends in radiation therapy planning," Journal of Applied ..., vol. 2024, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 146.S. Wang, R. Wu, S. Jia, A. Diakite, C. Li, and others, "Knowledge-driven deep learning for fast MR imaging: Undersampled MR image reconstruction from supervised to un-supervised learning," *Magnetic Resonance in Medicine*, vol. 2024. wiley.com
- 147.S. H. Jørgensen, N. Bøgh, E. S. S. Hansen, "Hyperpolarized MRI-an

- update and future perspectives," Seminars in Nuclear Medicine, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 148.P. E. Z. Larson and J. W. Gordon, "Hyperpolarized metabolic MRIacquisition, reconstruction, and analysis methods," Metabolites, 2021. mdpi.com
- 149.J. W. Gordon, H. Y. Chen, N. Dwork, S. Tang, "Fast imaging for hyperpolarized MR metabolic imaging," *Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. nih.gov
- 150.G. Angelovski, B. J. Tickner, and G. Wang, "Opportunities and challenges with hyperpolarized bioresponsive probes for functional imaging using magnetic resonance," Nature Chemistry, 2023. [HTML]
- 151.C. Hilty, D. Kurzbach, and L. Frydman, "Hyperpolarized water as universal sensitivity booster in biomolecular NMR," Nature protocols, 2022. [HTML]
- 152.M. De Simone, G. Iaconetta, G. Palermo, A. Fiorindi, "Clustering functional magnetic resonance imaging time series in glioblastoma characterization: A review of the evolution, applications, and potentials," Brain Sciences, 2024. mdpi.com
- 153.E. Lunkova, G. I. Guberman, A. Ptito, et al., "Noninvasive magnetic resonance imaging techniques in mild traumatic brain injury research and diagnosis," *Human Brain*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 154.A. Boutet, A. Z. Yang, A. Vetkas, B. Santyr, S. Lang, "Functional Magnetic Resonance Imaging in Neurosurgery," in fMRI Techniques and Applications, Springer, 2025. [HTML]
- 155.N. Hosadurg and C. M. Kramer, "Magnetic resonance imaging techniques in peripheral arterial disease," Advances in Wound Care, 2023. nih.gov
- 156.M. Putra, S. S. Vasanthi, N. S. Rao, C. Meyer, "...)-induced ferroptosis in long-term epilepsy-associated neuropathology: Structural and functional magnetic resonance imaging correlations with neurobehavior ...," The Journal of ..., vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 157.L. Duan, H. Huang, F. Sun, Z. Zhao, M. Wang, "Comparing the blood oxygen level-dependent fluctuation power of benign and malignant musculoskeletal tumors using functional magnetic resonance imaging,"

- Frontiers in ..., vol. 2022. nih.gov
- 158.S. N. Kumar, A. L. Fred, H. A. Kumar, et al., "Progress and Prospects in Functional MRI (fMRI) Studies of Neural Networks," in *Imaging Techniques*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 159.W. Sun, "Bridging Structure and Function: Magnetic Resonance Imaging for Comprehensive Brain Connectivity Study," 2024. uga.edu
- 160.A. Faria-Pereira and V. A. Morais, "Synapses: the brain's energy-demanding sites," International journal of molecular sciences, 2022. mdpi.com
- 161.S. Takahashi, "Metabolic contribution and cerebral blood flow regulation by astrocytes in the neurovascular unit," Cells, 2022. mdpi.com
- 162.G. Bonvento and J. P. Bolanos, "Astrocyte-neuron metabolic cooperation shapes brain activity," Cell metabolism, 2021. cell.com
- 163.J. D. Pleil, M. A. G. Wallace, and M. D. Davis, "The physics of human breathing: flow, timing, volume, and pressure parameters for normal, on-demand, and ventilator respiration," *Journal of Breath Research*, vol. 15, no. 4, 2021. nih.gov
- 164.P. Vaupel, A. B. Flood, and H. M. Swartz, "Oxygenation Status of Malignant Tumors vs. Normal Tissues: Critical Evaluation and Updated Data Source Based on Direct Measurements with pO2 Microsensors," Applied Magnetic Resonance, 2021. springer.com
- 165.J. Li, B. L. R. Pora, K. Dong, and J. Hasjim, "Health benefits of docosahexaenoic acid and its bioavailability: A review," Food science & nutrition, 2021. wiley.com
- 166.W. Zhong, Z. Ji, and C. Sun, "A review of monitoring methods for cerebral blood oxygen saturation," Healthcare, 2021. mdpi.com
- 167.R. R. Bruno, B. Wernly, H. Flaatten, J. Fjølner, et al., "Lactate is associated with mortality in very old intensive care patients suffering from COVID-19: results from an international observational study of 2860 patients," *Annals of Intensive Care*, vol. 11, no. 1, 2021. springer.com
- 168.E. K. Englund, D. A. Reiter, B. Shahidi, et al., "Intravoxel incoherent motion magnetic resonance imaging in skeletal muscle: review and future directions," *Journal of Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. nih.gov

- 169.J. Gottlieb, P. Capetian, U. Hamsen, U. Janssens, "German S3 guideline: oxygen therapy in the acute care of adult patients," Respiration, vol. 101, no. 3, pp. 1-12, 2022. gdimov.eu
- 170.K. G. Hirsch, B. S. Abella, E. Amorim, M. K. Bader, et al., "Critical care management of patients after cardiac arrest: a scientific statement from the American Heart Association and Neurocritical Care Society," Neurocritical Care, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 171.S. Thilak, P. Brown, T. Whitehouse, N. Gautam, "Diagnosis and management of subarachnoid haemorrhage," Nature, 2024. nature.com
- 172.E. Pritišanac, B. Urlesberger, B. Schwaberger, and G. Pichler, "Accuracy of pulse oximetry in the presence of fetal hemoglobin-a systematic review," Children, 2021. mdpi.com
- 173.J. Yao, H. C. Yang, J. H. Wang, Z. Liang, "A novel method of quantifying hemodynamic delays to improve hemodynamic response, and CVR estimates in CO2 challenge fMRI," *Journal of Cerebral Blood Flow & Metabolism*, vol. 41, no. 1, pp. 123-135, 2021. sagepub.com
- 174.OB Woodward, I. Driver, and S. T. Schwarz, "Assessment of brainstem function and haemodynamics by MRI: challenges and clinical prospects," The British Journal of ..., 2023. oup.com
- 175.E. Kavroulakis, N. J. Simos, T. G. Maris, I. Zaganas, "Evidence of agerelated hemodynamic and functional connectivity impairment: a resting state fMRI study," *Frontiers in ...*, 2021. frontiers in.org
- 176.A. Das, K. Murphy, and P. J. Drew, "Rude mechanicals in brain haemodynamics: non-neural actors that influence blood flow," *Transactions of the Royal Society*, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2021. royalsocietypublishing.org
- 177.S. Amemiya, H. Takao, and O. Abe, "Resting-State fMRI: Emerging Concepts for Future Clinical Application," Journal of Magnetic Resonance, 2024. wiley.com
- 178.M. Y. Yeh, H. S. Chen, P. Hou, V. A. Kumar, et al., "Cerebrovascular reactivity mapping using resting-state functional MRI in patients with gliomas," *Journal of Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 55, no. 2, pp. 123-134, 2022. nih.gov
- 179.P. Liu, G. Liu, M. C. Pinho, Z. Lin, B. P. Thomas, M. Rundle, et al., "Cerebrovascular reactivity mapping using resting-state BOLD

- functional MRI in healthy adults and patients with Moyamoya disease," *Radiology*, vol. 299, no. 1, pp. 118-127, 2021. rsna.org
- 180.R. Beisteiner, C. Pernet, and C. Stippich, "Can We Standardize Clinical Functional Neuroimaging Procedures?," 2019. [PDF]
- 181.J. E. Sevransky, A. Agarwal, C. S. Jabaley, et al., "Standardized care is better than individualized care for the majority of critically ill patients," *Critical Care*, vol. 2021. nih.gov
- 182.B. Khan, H. Fatima, A. Qureshi, and S. Kumar, "Drawbacks of artificial intelligence and their potential solutions in the healthcare sector," Biomedical Materials & Engineering, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com
- 183.E. Guedj, A. Varrone, R. Boellaard, N. L. Albert, et al., "EANM procedure guidelines for brain PET imaging using FDG, version 3," *European Journal of Nuclear Medicine and Molecular Imaging*, vol. 49, no. 5, pp. 1656-1671, 2022. springer.com
- 184.A. E. Schutte, A. Kollias, and G. S. Stergiou, "Blood pressure and its variability: classic and novel measurement techniques," Nature Reviews Cardiology, 2022. nature.com
- 185.C. Giordano, M. Brennan, B. Mohamed, "Accessing artificial intelligence for clinical decision-making," Frontiers in Digital Health, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 186.S. Ahn and S. K. Lee, "Diffusion Tensor Imaging: Exploring the Motor Networks and Clinical Applications," 2011. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 187.I. A. Yassine, "High rank tensor and spherical harmonic models for diffusion MRI processing," 2010. [PDF]
- 188.R. A. Kauppinen, J. Thothard, et al., "Axon fiber orientation as the source of T1 relaxation anisotropy in white matter: A study on corpus callosum in vivo and ex vivo," *Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 189.S. Hanalioglu, S. Bahadir, A. C. Ozak, K. Yangi, "Ultrahigh-resolution 7-Tesla anatomic magnetic resonance imaging and diffusion tensor imaging of ex vivo formalin-fixed human brainstem-cerebellum complex," *Frontiers in Human Neuroscience*, 2024. frontiersin.org
- 190.Y. Liao, S. Coelho, J. Chen, B. Ades-Aron, and M. Pang, "Mapping tissue microstructure of brain white matter in vivo in health and disease using diffusion MRI," Imaging, 2024. mit.edu

- 191.D. Henssen, S. J. P. Kluin, J. Kleerebezem, et al., "... matter changes in the trigeminal spinal tract in chronic migraineurs: an ex vivo study combining ultra-high-field diffusion tensor imaging and polarized light imaging ...," Pain, vol. 2022. researchgate.net
- 192.K. Jang and M. Back, "Spatial Mapping of Glioblastoma Infiltration: Diffusion Tensor Imaging-Based Radiomics and Connectomics in Recurrence Prediction," Brain Sciences, 2025. mdpi.com
- 193.K. Oishi, J. S. Chotiyanonta, S. Mori, J. C. Troncoso, "Identification and characterization of the thalamic ventral posterior complex by 11.7 T ex vivo diffusion tensor imaging," Brain Structure and Function, vol. 2025, Springer, 2025. [HTML]
- 194.G. Xu, Y. Zhang, and X. Chen, "Combined diffusion tensor imaging and quantitative susceptibility mapping to characterize normal-appearing white matter in self-limited epilepsy with centrotemporal ...," Neuroradiology, 2024. [HTML]
- 195.M. T Cashmore, A. J McCann, S. J Wastling, C. McGrath et al., "Clinical quantitative MRI and the need for metrology," 2021. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 196.B. R. Knowles, F. Friedrich, C. Fischer, D. Paech et al., "Beyond T2 and 3T: New MRI techniques for clinicians," 2019. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 197.V. Di Paola, G. Mazzotta, V. Pignatelli, E. Bufi, A. D'Angelo, "Beyond N staging in breast cancer: Importance of MRI and ultrasound-based imaging," Cancers, 2022. mdpi.com
- 198.D. Wekking, M. Porcu, P. De Silva, L. Saba, "Breast MRI: clinical indications, recommendations, and future applications in breast cancer diagnosis," *Current Oncology*, vol. 30, no. X, pp. Y-Z, 2023. [HTML]
- 199.G. Forrai, E. Kovács, É. Ambrózay, et al., "... modalities in modern screening, diagnostics and management of breast tumours 1st central-eastern European professional consensus statement on breast cancer," *Pathology and ...*, 2022. nih.gov
- 200.D. Shahbazi-Gahrouei, F. Aminolroayaei, H. Nematollahi, "Advanced magnetic resonance imaging modalities for breast cancer diagnosis: An overview of recent findings and perspectives," Diagnostics, vol. 12, no. 3, 2022. mdpi.com
- 201.Q. Hu, H. M. Whitney, H. Li, Y. Ji, P. Liu, "Classification of benign and malignant breast lesions using deep feature maximum intensity

- projection MRI in breast cancer diagnosis using dynamic contrast," *Radiology: Artificial Intelligence*, vol. 3, no. 1, pp. 1-10, 2021. rsna.org
- 202.M. Radak, H. Y. Lafta, and H. Fallahi, "Machine learning and deep learning techniques for breast cancer diagnosis and classification: a comprehensive review of medical imaging studies," *Journal of Cancer Research and Clinical*, vol. 2023, Springer. nih.gov
- 203.NU Rehman, J. Wang, H. Weiyan, I. Ali, A. Akbar, "Edge of discovery: Enhancing breast tumor MRI analysis with boundary-driven deep learning," in Signal Processing and, vol. 2024, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 204.B. Taschler, "Spatial point process models for MRI lesion data in multiple sclerosis," 1970. [PDF]
- 205.R. H. Paul, "Evolution of Neuroimaging Technology in the Modern Era," 2016. [PDF]
- 206.C. Westbrook, "Handbook of MRI technique," 2021. [HTML]
- 207.A. A. Kumar and C. Kesavadas, "Potential of MRI in Clinical Medicine," Multimodal Biomedical Imaging Techniques, 2025. [HTML]
- 208.P. Summers, G. Saia, A. Colombo, P. Pricolo, "Whole-body magnetic resonance imaging: technique, guidelines and key applications," 2021. nih.gov
- 209.T. C. Arnold, C. W. Freeman, B. Litt, et al., "Low-field MRI: clinical promise and challenges," *Journal of Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2023, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 210.Ü Aydıngöz, A. E. Yıldız, and F. B. Ergen, "Zero echo time musculoskeletal MRI: technique, optimization, applications, and pitfalls," Radiographics, 2022. rsna.org
- 211.S. Pazahr, D. Nanz, and R. Sutter, "7 T musculoskeletal MRI: fundamentals and clinical implementation," Investigative Radiology, 2023. lww.com
- 212.A. Retter, F. Gong, T. Syer, S. Singh, S. Adeleke, "Emerging methods for prostate cancer imaging: evaluating cancer structure and metabolic alterations more clearly," *Molecular Imaging*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com

- 213.G. Li, Y. Hu, W. Zhang, J. Wang, W. Ji, P. Manza, "Brain functional and structural magnetic resonance imaging of obesity and weight loss interventions," Molecular Psychiatry, vol. 2023. nature.com
- 214.D. Scheinost, A. Pollatou, A. J. Dufford, R. Jiang, et al., "Machine learning and prediction in fetal, infant, and toddler neuroimaging: a review and primer," *Biological Psychiatry*, vol. 2023, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 215.Y. Cui, T. Y. Tang, C. Q. Lu, and S. Ju, "Insulin resistance and cognitive impairment: evidence from neuroimaging," *Journal of Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 55, no. 1, pp. 1-10, 2022. [HTML]
- 216.S. Pazahr, D. Nanz, and R. Sutter, "7 T Musculoskeletal MRI: Fundamentals and Clinical Implementation," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 217.C. B. Chung, M. N. Pathria, and D. Resnick, "MRI in MSK: is it the ultimate examination?," Skeletal Radiology, 2024. springer.com
- 218.I. Khodarahmi and M. B. Keerthivasan, "Modern low-field MRI of the musculoskeletal system: practice considerations, opportunities, and challenges," *Investigative Radiology*, vol. 2023. [HTML]
- 219.D. B. Sneag, F. Abel, H. G. Potter, J. Fritz, and M. F. Koff, "MRI advancements in musculoskeletal clinical and research practice," Radiology, 2023. rsna.org
- 220.J. Fritz, R. Guggenberger, and F. D. Grande, "Rapid musculoskeletal MRI in 2021: clinical application of advanced accelerated techniques," *American Journal of ...*, 2021. ajronline.org
- 221.M. C. Florkow and K. Willemsen, "Magnetic resonance imaging versus computed tomography for three-dimensional bone imaging of musculoskeletal pathologies: a review," *Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 222.J. Vosshenrich, G. Koerzdoerfer, and J. Fritz, "Modern acceleration in musculoskeletal MRI: applications, implications, and challenges," Skeletal Radiology, 2024. [HTML]
- 223.A. Banerjee, B. Blasiak, A. Dash, B. Tomanek, "High-field magnetic resonance imaging: Challenges, advantages, and opportunities for novel contrast agents," Chemical Physics, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. researchgate.net
- 224.A. Shah and C. A. Rojas, "Imaging modalities (MRI, CT, PET/CT), indications, differential diagnosis and imaging characteristics of cystic

- mediastinal masses: a review," Mediastinum, 2022. nih.gov
- 225.S. M. Thompson, K. R. Gorny, E. M. K. Koepsel, B. T. Welch, and others, "Body interventional MRI for diagnostic and interventional radiologists: current practice and future prospects," Radiographics, vol. 41, no. 1, pp. 123-138, 2021. rsna.org
- 226.X. Ren and L. Li, "Magnetic resonance imaging in lymphedema: Opportunities, challenges, and future perspectives," Magnetic Resonance Imaging, 2025. [HTML]
- 227.M. Pecoraro, E. Messina, M. Bicchetti, G. Carnicelli, "The future direction of imaging in prostate cancer: MRI with or without contrast injection," Wiley Online Library, 2021. wiley.com
- 228.C. P. Nagesh, R. Rao, S. B. Hiremath, "Magnetic resonance imaging of the orbit, Part 1: Basic principles and radiological approach," Indian Journal of ..., vol. 2021. lww.com
- 229.M. Lembo, M. V. Manzi, C. Mancusi, C. Morisco, "Advanced imaging tools for evaluating cardiac morphological and functional impairment in hypertensive disease," *Journal of ...*, 2022. lww.com
- 230.P. S. Rajiah, C. J. François, and T. Leiner, "Cardiac MRI: state of the art," Radiology, 2023. rsna.org
- 231.J. Vega-Adauy, O. O. Tok, A. Celik, et al., "Comprehensive assessment of heart failure with preserved ejection fraction using cardiac MRI," *Heart Failure Clinics*, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- 232.J. Pan, S. M. Ng, S. Neubauer, and others, "Phenotyping heart failure by cardiac magnetic resonance imaging of cardiac macro-and microscopic structure: state of the art review," *Journal of Cardiovascular*, vol. 2023. oup.com
- 233.M. P. Marra and A. Cecere, "Cardiac MRI," in *Valve Syndrome: A Not So Benign Congenital Heart*, 2025, Springer. [HTML]
- 234.E. S. H. Ibrahim, J. Dennison, L. Frank, and J. Stojanovska, "Diastolic cardiac function by MRI-imaging capabilities and clinical applications," Tomography, 2021. mdpi.com
- 235.A. Cipriani, G. Mattesi, R. Bariani, A. Cecere, N. Martini, "Cardiac magnetic resonance imaging of arrhythmogenic cardiomyopathy: evolving diagnostic perspectives," *European Journal of Cardiology*, vol. 2023, Springer. springer.com

- 236.F. Indrio, J. Neu, M. Pettoello-Mantovani, F. Marchese, "Development of the gastrointestinal tract in newborns as a challenge for an appropriate nutrition: a narrative review," Nutrients, 2022. mdpi.com
- 237.Y. Liu, Z. Zhang, G. Mu, and X. Zhu, "Comparative nutritional outcomes in preterm infants and formulation optimization of infant formula: a review," Reviews in Food Science and Nutrition, vol. 2025, Taylor & Francis. [HTML]
- 238.E. Zaunseder, U. Mütze, J. G. Okun, G. F. Hoffmann, et al., "Personalized metabolic whole-body models for newborns and infants predict growth and biomarkers of inherited metabolic diseases," Cell Metabolism, vol. 39, no. 1, pp. 1-12, 2024. cell.com
- 239.K. A. H. S. Denne and W. W. Hay Jr., "Energy requirements and carbohydrates in preterm infants," in *Preterm Infants: Scientific Basis and Clinical Management*, 2021. [HTML]
- 240.T. Bekele, H. Merga, T. Tesfaye, and H. Asefa, "Predictors of mortality among neonates hospitalized with neonatal sepsis: a case control study from southern Ethiopia," BMC pediatrics, 2022. springer.com
- 241.Y. Wang, S. Liu, M. Lu, T. Huang et al., "Neurodevelopmental outcomes of preterm with necrotizing enterocolitis: a systematic review and meta-analysis," European journal of pediatrics, 2024. springer.com
- 242.H. Hricak, M. Abdel-Wahab, R. Atun, M. M. Lette, et al., "Medical imaging and nuclear medicine: a Lancet Oncology Commission," *Lancet Oncology*, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- 243.F. Vipiana and L. Crocco, "Electromagnetic Imaging for a Novel Generation of Medical Devices," Cham, . [HTML]
- 244.M. Gezimati and G. Singh, "Advances in terahertz technology for cancer detection applications," Optical and Quantum Electronics, 2023. springer.com
- 245.M. Gezimati and G. Singh, "Terahertz imaging and sensing for healthcare: current status and future perspectives," Ieee Access, 2023. ieee.org
- 246.Z. Yan, L. G. Zhu, K. Meng, W. Huang et al., "THz medical imaging: from in vitro to in vivo," Trends in Biotechnology, 2022. [HTML]
- 247.X. Jiang, Z. Hu, S. Wang, and Y. Zhang, "Deep learning for medical image-based cancer diagnosis," Cancers, 2023. mdpi.com

- 248.L. Wang, "Microwave imaging and sensing techniques for breast cancer detection," Micromachines, 2023. mdpi.com
- 249.L. Wang, "From Phytoplankton to Fish: Exploring the Trophic Levels of Aquatic Ecosystems," International Journal of Aquaculture, 2025. aquapublisher.com
- 250.L. Naselli-Flores and J. Padisák, "Ecosystem services provided by marine and freshwater phytoplankton," Hydrobiologia, 2023. springer.com
- 251.N. V. Lobus and M. S. Kulikovskiy, "The co-evolution aspects of the biogeochemical role of phytoplankton in aquatic ecosystems: A review," Biology, 2023. mdpi.com
- 252.S. Jahan and A. Singh, "The role of phytoplanktons in the environment and in human life, a review," Basrah Journal of Sciences, 2023. basjsci.edu.iq
- 253.A. E. F. Prowe, B. Su, J. C. Nejstgaard, et al., "Food web structure and intraguild predation affect ecosystem functioning in an established plankton model," *Limnology and Oceanography*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 254.Z. Luo, K. S. Hii, Y. Zhuang, and H. F. Mohamed, "The response of microalgae and plankton to climate change and human activities," Frontiers in Marine Science, 2024. frontiers in.org
- 255.Y. Wan, Q. Kong, H. Du, W. Yang, W. Zha, and W. Li, "Effectiveness of artificial reefs in enhancing phytoplankton community dynamics: A meta-analysis," *Science of The Total Environment*, vol. 2024, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 256.N. K. Kashyap, M. Hait, and A. K. Bhardwaj, "Planktons as a sustainable biomonitoring tool of aquatic ecosystem," in *... of Pollutants in the Global South*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 257.S. A Alghamdi, "Assessment of MRI Safety Practices in Saudi Arabia," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 258.T. Pires and M. M. Jaseemudheen, "The rise and efficiency of low field portable MRI scanners," *Journal of Health and Allied ...*, 2024. thieme-connect.com
- 259.S. C. L. Deoni, P. Medeiros, A. T. Deoni, and P. Burton, "Development of a mobile low-field MRI scanner," *Scientific Reports*, vol. 12, no. 1, 2022, nature.com

- 260.W. T. Kimberly, A. J. Sorby-Adams, A. G. Webb, et al., "Brain imaging with portable low-field MRI," *Nature Reviews*, 2023. nih.gov
- 261.L. Mittendorff, A. Young, and J. Sim, "A narrative review of current and emerging MRI safety issues: What every MRI technologist (radiographer) needs to know," *Journal of Medical Radiation*, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. wiley.com
- 262.C. D. E. Van Speybroeck, T. O'Reilly, W. Teeuwisse, and others, "Image artifacts in the presence of passive medical implants in low-field (< 100 mT) permanent magnet-based MRI systems, and comparisons with clinical MRI," Physica Medica, vol. 2021, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com</p>
- 263.E. Yang, M. Suzuki, S. Nazarian, and H. R. Halperin, "Magnetic resonance imaging safety in patients with cardiac implantable electronic devices," *Trends in Cardiovascular Medicine*, vol. 32, no. 3, pp. 123-130, 2022. sciencedirect.com
- 264.M. Parizh and W. Stautner, "MRI magnets," Handbook of Superconductivity, 2022. [HTML]
- 265.Y. Al-Naser and D. Tafti, "MRI Patient Safety And Care," StatPearls, 2024. statpearls.com
- 266.N. M. Jusoh and N. M. A. N. Pakheruddin, "A Pilot Survey on MRI Screening Tools and MRI Hazards in Malaysia," *Asian Journal of ...*, 2023. unisza.edu.my
- 267.S. A. Alghamdi, "Assessment of MRI safety practices in Saudi Arabia," Risk Management and Healthcare Policy, 2023. tandfonline.com
- 268.R. D. Khera, J. A. Hirsch, K. Buch, et al., "ED MRI: safety, consent, and regulatory considerations," *Magnetic Resonance Imaging Clinics*, vol. 2022. [HTML]
- 269.O. Bwanga, E. Chanda, and N. Mukata, "Orbital foreign body detected during routine screening for magnetic resonance imaging (MRI) examinations: a case report to underscore safety protocols and also the ...," South African Radiographer, 2023. sar.org.za
- 270.C. Rogers, A. M. John, and B. Moore, "The role of MRI research radiographers in clinical research: Responsibilities, challenges, and future directions a UK perspective," Journal of Medical Imaging and Radiation, vol. 2025, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 271.P. C Rathebe, "Perceived safety of MRI units in the two public hospitals

- within the central region of South Africa: A pilot study among four MR staff," 2022. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 272. V. M. Runge and J. T. Heverhagen, "... of magnetic resonance imaging according to field strength, specifically addressing the breadth of current state-of-the-art systems, which include 0.55 T, 1.5 T, 3 T, and ...," Investigative radiology, 2022. unibe.ch
- 273.R. Heiss, A. M. Nagel, F. B. Laun, M. Uder, et al., "Low-field magnetic resonance imaging: a new generation of breakthrough technology in clinical imaging," *Investigative Radiology*, vol. 2021. [HTML]
- 274.D. V. López, H. I. S. Mendoza, E. H. P. Alcaraz, "An evaluation of the current status of quality assurance program in MRI: A multicenter study," Radiography, vol. 2025, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 275.Y. Wang, P. Wu, W. Wang, H. Wang, S. Chen, and J. Sun, "Cryogen-free superconducting magnetic resonance imaging system: A review," Fundamental..., vol. 2025, Elsevier. sciencedirect.com
- 276.L. Yin, Z. Z. Li, M. Y. Shang, Z. C. Li, B. W. Tang, and D. Yu, "Magnetic resonance cholangiopancreatography at 5.0 T: quantitative and qualitative comparison with 3.0 T," BMC Medical Imaging, 2024. springer.com
- 277.H. Michael Gach, A. N Curcuru, E. J Wittland, B. Maraghechi et al., "MRI quality control for low-field MR-IGRT systems: Lessons learned," 2019. [PDF]
- 278.P. Yadav, J. Sohn, and A. U. Khan, "The First Low-Field MRI-Guided Radiation Therapy Hybrid Integrated System: MRIdian," in *A Practical Guide to MR-Linac: Technical ...*, 2024, Springer. [HTML]
- 279.S. Gantz and S. M. Schellhammer, "Image Performance Characterization of an In-Beam Low-Field Magnetic Resonance Imaging System During Static Proton Beam Irradiation," in *Proceedings of the IEEE International Conference on Radiation and*, 2021. hzdr.de
- 280.B. P. Ravindran, "Image-guided radiation therapy: physics and technology," 2022. [HTML]
- 281.X. Zhang, C. Wang, K. Chen, A. H. Clark, R. Hübner, et al., "Publications Repository-Helmholtz-Zentrum Dresden-Rossendorf," *Advanced Materials*, vol. 2023. hzdr.de
- 282.J. A. Nanzer, S. R. Mghabghab, S. M. Ellison, et al., "Distributed phased

- arrays: Challenges and recent advances," IEEE Transactions on [Journal Name], vol. [Volume Number], no. [Issue Number], pp. [Page Range], 2021. ieee.org
- 283.G. Zhou, C. Xu, H. Zhang, X. Zhou, and D. Zhao, "PMT gain self-adjustment system for high-accuracy echo signal detection," *Journal of Remote Sensing*, vol. 2022, Taylor & Francis. [HTML]
- 284.Y. Liu, Z. Wang, X. Mu, C. Ouyang, and X. Xu, "Pinching-antenna systems (PASS): Architecture designs, opportunities, and outlook," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXXXXXXX, 2025. [PDF]
- 285.J. A. Zhang, F. Liu, C. Masouros, and R. W. Heath, "An overview of signal processing techniques for joint communication and radar sensing," in *Topics in Signal Processing*, 2021. ieee.org
- 286.Q. Zhang, X. Wang, Z. Li, and Z. Wei, "Design and performance evaluation of joint sensing and communication integrated system for 5G mmWave enabled CAVs," *IEEE Journal of Selected Topics in Signal Processing*, vol. 15, no. 6, pp. 1234-1245, 2021. [PDF]
- 287.R. Li, Z. Xiao, and Y. Zeng, "Toward seamless sensing coverage for cellular multi-static integrated sensing and communication," IEEE Transactions on Wireless Communications, 2023. [HTML]
- 288.H. Jin, K. Liu, M. Zhang, L. Zhang, and G. Lee, "Massive MIMO evolution toward 3GPP release 18," IEEE Journal on Selected Areas in Communications, vol. 2023. [PDF]
- 289.D. Alkhulaifat, L. Vidal, E. Larsen, S. D. Serai, "MRI safety-developing the right culture," *Pediatric ...*, 2025. springer.com
- 290.M. Chau, "Enhancing safety culture in radiology: Key practices and recommendations for sustainable excellence," Radiography, 2024. sciencedirect.com
- 291.L. Lu, Y. M. Ko, H. Y. Chen, J. W. Chueh, and P. Y. Chen, "Patient safety and staff well-being: organizational culture as a resource," *International Journal of ...*, vol. 2022. mdpi.com
- 292.Y. V. Chaban, J. Vosshenrich, H. McKee, et al., "Environmental sustainability and MRI: challenges, opportunities, and a call for action," *Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 2024, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 293.M. Adelodun and E. Anyanwu, "Comprehensive risk management and safety strategies in radiation use in medical imaging," Int J Front Med

- Surg Res, 2024. researchgate.net
- 294.A. Kaim, C. Singer, L. Bergovoy-Yellin, et al., "Exploring pre-MRI imaging tests: patient survey reveals potential implications for healthcare efficiency in Israel," Israel Journal of Health, vol. 2024, Springer. springer.com
- 295.A. Bhuva, G. Charles-Edwards, J. Ashmore, A. Lipton, et al., "Joint British Society consensus recommendations for magnetic resonance imaging for patients with cardiac implantable electronic devices," *Heart*, 2024. bmj.com
- 296.R. J. Russo and L. Gakenheimer-Smith, "HRS Call to Action: Improved MRI Access for Patients with Cardiovascular Implantable Electronic Devices," Heart Rhythm, vol. 2025, Elsevier. heartrhythmjournal.com
- 297.L. S. De Leon-Benedetti, K. I. Ramirez-Suarez, H. J. Otero, et al., "How we do it: Cardiac implantable devices are not a contraindication to MRI: time for a paradigm shift," *Pediatric ... *, 2024. [HTML]
- 298.A. J. Evans, R. W. Brown, M. M. Bui, et al., "... whole slide imaging systems for diagnostic purposes in pathology: guideline update from the College of American Pathologists in collaboration with the American ...," *Journal of Pathology*, vol. XX, no. XX, pp. XX-XX, 2022. allenpress.com
- 299.D. B. Larson, H. Harvey, D. L. Rubin, N. Irani, J. R. Tse, "Regulatory frameworks for development and evaluation of artificial intelligence—based diagnostic imaging algorithms: summary and recommendations," College of Radiology, 2021. jacr.org
- 300.S. S. Naidu, D. A. Baran, J. C. Jentzer, S. M. Hollenberg, "...: This statement was endorsed by the American College of Cardiology (ACC), American College of Emergency Physicians (ACEP), American Heart Association (AHA)," Journal of the American College of Cardiology, 2022. jacc.org
- 301.R. C. Cury, J. Leipsic, S. Abbara, S. Achenbach, et al., "... tomography (SCCT), the American college of cardiology (ACC), the American college of radiology (ACR), and the North America society of cardiovascular imaging ...," J. Am. Coll. Cardiol. Imaging, 2022. jacc.org
- 302.J. A. Joglar, M. K. Chung, A. L. Armbruster, et al., ".../HRS guideline for the diagnosis and management of atrial fibrillation: a report of the American College of Cardiology/American Heart Association Joint

- Committee on ...," Journal of the American College of Cardiology, 2024. jacc.org
- 303.S. V. Rao, M. L. O'Donoghue, M. Ruel, T. Rab, "... for the management of patients with acute coronary syndromes: a report of the American College of Cardiology/American Heart Association Joint Committee on ...," *Journal of the American College of Cardiology*, 2025. jacc.org
- 304.G. Zandieh, I. Yazdaninia, S. Afyouni, A. Borhani, T. Yokoo, "Updates on the MR safety guidelines–Essentials for radiologists," Clinical Imaging, 2025. [HTML]
- 305.A. Al-Radaideh and H. Al-Modallal, "MRI safety matters: assessing the knowledge of radiologic technologists and nurses for safe imaging practices," Journal of Radiology Nursing, 2023. qnl.qa
- 306.A. Ebinesh and S. Saxena, "Principles of a controlled imaging environment for neonatal brain MRI: Strategies for optimal image quality and safety," The Neuroradiology Journal, 2025. nih.gov
- 307.A. Young, L. Mittendorff, and J. H. H. Sim, "Ensuring the Safety of MRI Patients With Medical Implants or Devices In Situ: A Snapshot in Time of the Role and Responsibilities of New Zealand and Australian MRI ...," Journal of Medical Radiation, vol. 2025, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 308.A. C. Epistatou, I. A. Tsalafoutas, and K. K. Delibasis, "An Automated Method for Quality Control in MRI Systems: Methods and Considerations," 2020. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 309.J. Papp, "Quality Management in the Imaging Sciences-E-Book: Quality Management in the Imaging Sciences-E-Book," 2023. [HTML]
- 310.R. Author1, R. Author2, and R. Author3, "Quality assurance and quality control reporting in untargeted metabolic phenotyping: mQACC recommendations for analytical quality management," Metabolomics, vol. XX, no. YY, pp. ZZ-ZZ, 2022. springer.com
- 311.L. Y. Cai, Q. Yang, C. B. Hansen, V. Nath, et al., "PreQual: An automated pipeline for integrated preprocessing and quality assurance of diffusion weighted MRI images," *Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2021, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 312.P. L. Spath, "Applying quality management in healthcare: A systems approach," 2021. [HTML]
- 313.G. Waghmode and S. R. Mane, "Introduction to the Back Bone of

- Excellence: Exploring QA & QC," ijprdjournal.com, . ijprdjournal.com
- 314.B. Mahadevan, "Total Quality Management in the Healthcare industry: An Efficient Guide for Healthcare Management," 2022. [HTML]
- 315.V. Thakur, O. A. Akerele, and E. Randell, "Lean and Six Sigma as continuous quality improvement frameworks in the clinical diagnostic laboratory," *Critical Reviews in Clinical ...*, vol. 2023, Taylor & Francis. [HTML]
- 316.A. Upadhyay, A. Manzoor, B. Bhushan, "Indian industries and biologicals," in *Quality Control and ...*, 2024. [HTML]
- 317.G. Wang, M. Gao, S. Yang, Y. Zhang, L. He, "Citrus: Leveraging expert cognitive pathways in a medical language model for advanced medical decision support," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXX.XXXX, 2025. [PDF]
- 318.J. Hendriks, H. J. Mutsaerts, R. Joules, Ó. Peña-Nogales, "A systematic review of (semi-) automatic quality control of T1-weighted MRI scans," Neuroradiology, 2024. springer.com
- 319.J. Monereo-Sánchez, J. J. A. de Jong, G. S. Drenthen, et al., "Quality control strategies for brain MRI segmentation and parcellation: Practical approaches and recommendations-insights from the Maastricht study," Neuroimage, vol. 202, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 320.J. Papp, "Quality Management in the Imaging Sciences-E-Book: Quality Management in the Imaging Sciences-E-Book," 2023. [HTML]
- 321.P. Vakli, B. Weiss, J. Szalma, P. Barsi, I. Gyuricza, "Automatic brain MRI motion artifact detection based on end-to-end deep learning is similarly effective as traditional machine learning trained on image quality ...", Medical Image, 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 322.A. D. Pontoriero, G. Nordio, R. Easmin, A. Giacomel, "Automated data quality control in FDOPA brain PET imaging using deep learning," *Computer Methods and Programs in Biomedicine*, vol. 202, 2021. sciencedirect.com
- 323.R. J. Goodburn and M. E. P. Philippens, "The future of MRI in radiation therapy: Challenges and opportunities for the MR community," *Magnetic Resonance*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library, wiley.com
- 324.R. Otazo, P. Lambin, J. P. Pignol, M. E. Ladd, et al., "MRI-guided radiation therapy: an emerging paradigm in adaptive radiation oncology," *Radiology*, vol. 299, no. 1, pp. 1-10, 2021. rsna.org

- 325.C. M. Benitez, M. D. Chuong, L. A. Künzel, et al., "MRI-guided adaptive radiation therapy," in *Radiation Oncology*, 2024, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 326.M. D. Chuong, R. F. Palm, and M. C. Tjong, "Advances in MRI-guided radiation therapy," Surgical Oncology, vol. 2023. [HTML]
- 327.C. Ladbury, A. Amini, A. Schwer, A. Liu et al., "Clinical applications of magnetic resonance-guided radiotherapy: A narrative review," Cancers, 2023. mdpi.com
- 328.C. M. Benitez, M. L. Steinberg, M. Cao, X. S. Qi, J. M. Lamb, et al., "MRI-guided radiation therapy for prostate cancer: the next frontier in ultrahypofractionation," Cancers, vol. 15, no. 12, 2023. mdpi.com
- 329.M. D. Qiongge Hu and M. Cao, "Practical Safety Considerations for Integration of Magnetic Resonance Imaging in Radiation Therapy," academia.edu, . academia.edu
- 330.S. Tanadini-Lang, G. Budgell, O. Bohoudi, et al., "An ESTRO-ACROP guideline on quality assurance and medical physics commissioning of online MRI guided radiotherapy systems based on a consensus ...," Radiotherapy and ..., 2023. sciencedirect.com
- 331.S. Psoroulas, A. Paunoiu, S. Corradini, "MR-linac: role of artificial intelligence and automation," Strahlentherapie und Onkologie, 2025. springer.com
- 332.S. H. Cheng, S. Y. Lee, and H. H. Lee, "Harnessing the power of radiotherapy for lung cancer: a narrative review of the evolving role of magnetic resonance imaging guidance," Cancers, 2024. mdpi.com
- 333.H. Piperdi, D. Portal, S. S. Neibart, and N. J. Yue, "Adaptive radiation therapy in the treatment of lung cancer: An overview of the current state of the field," *Frontiers in*, vol. 2021. frontiersin.org
- 334.D. Y. Kim, B. S. Jang, E. Kim, and E. K. Chie, "Integrating Deep Learning-Based Dose Distribution Prediction with Bayesian Networks for Decision Support in Radiotherapy for Upper Gastrointestinal ...," Cancer Res Treat, 2025. koreamed.org
- 335.R. Kijowski and J. Fritz, "Emerging technology in musculoskeletal MRI and CT," Radiology, 2023. rsna.org
- 336.D. A. Feinberg, A. J. S. Beckett, A. T. Vu, J. Stockmann, et al., "Next-generation MRI scanner designed for ultra-high-resolution human brain imaging at 7 Tesla," *Nature*, 2023. nature.com

- 337.A. Azhar, "The exponential age: How accelerating technology is transforming business, politics and society," 2021. [HTML]
- 338.U. Ullah and B. Garcia-Zapirain, "Quantum machine learning revolution in healthcare: a systematic review of emerging perspectives and applications," IEEE Access, 2024. ieee.org
- 339.S. T. Sotardi, A. J. Degnan, C. A. Liu, P. L. Mecca, S. D. Serai, et al., "Establishing a magnetic resonance safety program," *Pediatric Radiology*, vol. 51, no. 1, pp. 1-10, 2021. springer.com
- 340.M. Schepers, P. Lagerweij, D. Geurts, F. Krause, H. Ouden, "Promoting Resilience in Youth through Mindfulness Meditation (PRYME): Study protocol for a randomized controlled trial investigating the effects of mindfulness ...," BMC Psychiatry, 2025. springer.com
- 341.R. Naim, K. Kircanski, A. Gold, R. E. German, M. Davis, et al., "Across-subjects multiple baseline trial of exposure-based cognitive-behavioral therapy for severe irritability: a study protocol," *BMJ Open*, vol. 11, no. 1, 2021. bmj.com
- 342.A. Karthik, S. S. Aalam, M. Sivakumar, "Improving brain tumor treatment with better imaging and real-time therapy using quantum dots," in *Signal Processing and ...*, 2024. [HTML]
- 343.K. Reeve, "SUPPLEMENT ABSTRACT," Journal of Medical Radiation Sciences, 2025. [HTML]
- 344.H. J. Teede, M. Gibson, J. Laven, A. Dokras, et al., "International PCOS guideline clinical research priorities roadmap: a co-designed approach aligned with end-user priorities in a neglected women's health condition," The Lancet, 2024. thelancet.com
- 345.S. Kaur, B. J. Tins, N. Winn, and K. P. Ganga, "Musculoskeletal Magnetic Resonance Imaging Revisited–Does Tesla of Magnetic Resonance Imaging Machines Matter?," Journal of Arthroscopy and ..., 2023. lww.com
- 346.T. Herrmann, T. Liebig, J. Mallow, C. Bruns et al., "Metamaterial-based transmit and receive system for whole-body magnetic resonance imaging at ultra-high magnetic fields," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 347.S. Trattnig, E. Springer, W. Bogner, G. Hangel et al., "Key clinical benefits of neuroimaging at 7 T," 2018. [PDF]
- 348.A. Shaffer, S. S. Kwok, A. Naik, A. T. Anderson, "Ultra-high-field MRI in the diagnosis and management of gliomas: a systematic review,"

- Frontiers in ..., 2022. frontiersin.org
- 349.F. X Shen, S. M Wolf, F. Lawrenz, D. S Comeau et al., "Ethical, legal, and policy challenges in field-based neuroimaging research using emerging portable MRI technologies: guidance for investigators and for oversight," 2024. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 350.M. Smits, "MRI biomarkers in neuro-oncology," Nature Reviews Neurology, 2021. eur.nl
- 351.F. Y. Chiu and Y. Yen, "Imaging biomarkers for clinical applications in neuro-oncology: current status and future perspectives," Biomarker Research, 2023. springer.com
- 352.F. Afrazeh, "Advances in imaging analysis for understanding brain disorders," *International Journal of Scientific and Applied Research*, 2024. ijsar.net
- 353.B. Vitrio and V. C. Destefani, "Advancing Neuroimaging Frontiers: A Comprehensive Review of Novel Diagnostic Techniques in Neuroradiology and Their Clinical Applications," Brazilian Journal of ..., 2024. emnuvens.com.br
- 354.K. Kamagata, C. Andica, A. Kato, Y. Saito, "Diffusion magnetic resonance imaging-based biomarkers for neurodegenerative diseases," *International Journal of ...*, 2021. mdpi.com
- 355.K. M. Kinnunen, A. J. Schwarz, E. C. Turner, et al., "Volumetric MRI-based biomarkers in Huntington's disease: an evidentiary review," *Frontiers in Neuroscience*, vol. 15, 2021. frontiersin.org
- 356.OM Henriksen, M. del Mar Álvarez-Torres, et al., "... treatment response monitoring biomarkers: a position statement on the evidence supporting the use of advanced MRI techniques in the clinic, and the latest ...," Frontiers in ..., 2022. frontiersin.org
- 357.M. Cenek, M. Hu, G. York, and S. Dahl, "Survey of Image Processing Techniques for Brain Pathology Diagnosis: Challenges and Opportunities," 2018. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 358.R. Obuchowicz, M. Strzelecki, and A. Piórkowski, "Clinical applications of artificial intelligence in medical imaging and image processing-A review," Cancers, 2024. mdpi.com
- 359.M. A. Abdou, "Literature review: Efficient deep neural networks techniques for medical image analysis," Neural Computing and Applications, 2022. researchgate.net

- 360.B. Lv, F. Liu, Y. Li, J. Nie et al., "Artificial intelligence-aided diagnosis solution by enhancing the edge features of medical images," Diagnostics, 2023. mdpi.com
- 361.M. Moor, O. Banerjee, Z. S. H. Abad, H. M. Krumholz, et al., "Foundation models for generalist medical artificial intelligence," *Nature*, 2023. nature.com
- 362.Z. Ahmad, S. Rahim, M. Zubair, and J. Abdul-Ghafar, "Artificial intelligence (AI) in medicine, current applications and future role with special emphasis on its potential and promise in pathology: present and future impact ...," Diagnostic pathology, 2021. springer.com
- 363.T. Zhao, Y. Gu, J. Yang, N. Usuyama, H. H. Lee, "Biomedparse: a biomedical foundation model for image parsing of everything everywhere all at once," arXiv preprint arXiv:XXXX.XXXX, 2024. [PDF]
- 364.VM Rao, M. Hla, M. Moor, S. Adithan, S. Kwak, and E. J. Topol, "Multimodal generative AI for medical image interpretation," Nature, 2025. yuntsg.com
- 365.K. S. Nayak and Y. Lim, "Real-time magnetic resonance imaging," *Magnetic Resonance Imaging*, vol. 2022, Wiley Online Library. wiley.com
- 366.B. Callewaert, E. A. V. Jones, U. Himmelreich, and W. Gsell, "Non-invasive evaluation of cerebral microvasculature using pre-clinical MRI: principles, advantages and limitations," Diagnostics, 2021. mdpi.com
- 367.Z. Chen, K. Pawar, M. Ekanayake, C. Pain, and S. Zhong, "Deep learning for image enhancement and correction in magnetic resonance imaging-state-of-the-art and challenges," *Journal of Digital Imaging*, vol. 2023, Springer.springer.com
- 368.U. Streit, J. Uhlig, J. Lotz, and B. Panahi, "Analysis of core processes of the MRI workflow for improved capacity utilization," *European Journal of...*, vol. 2021, Elsevier. [HTML]
- 369.S. S. Deen, C. Rooney, A. Shinozaki, J. McGing, et al., "Hyperpolarized carbon 13 MRI: clinical applications and future directions in oncology," Radiology: Imaging, 2023. rsna.org
- 370.S. Pudakalakatti and J. S. Enriquez, "Hyperpolarized MRI with silicon micro and nanoparticles: Principles and applications," Wiley, 2021. nih.gov

- 371.R. Woitek and F. A. Gallagher, "The use of hyperpolarised 13C-MRI in clinical body imaging to probe cancer metabolism," British journal of cancer, 2021. nature.com
- 372.F. Frijia, A. Flori, G. Giovannetti, A. Barison, and L. Menichetti, "MRI application and challenges of hyperpolarized carbon-13 pyruvate in translational and clinical cardiovascular studies: A literature review," Diagnostics, vol. 2024. mdpi.com
- 373.K. Kose, "Physical and technical aspects of human magnetic resonance imaging: present status and 50 years historical review," Advances in Physics: X, 2021. tandfonline.com
- 374.H. J. Smith, "The history of magnetic resonance imaging and its reflections in Acta Radiologica," Acta Radiologica, 2021. [HTML]
- 375.M. Hori, A. Hagiwara, M. Goto, A. Wada, "Low-field magnetic resonance imaging: its history and renaissance," *Investigative Radiology*, vol. 2021. lww.com
- 376.M. E. Ryan and A. Jaju, "Revolutionizing pediatric neuroimaging: the era of CT, MRI, and beyond," Child's Nervous System, 2023. [HTML]
- 377.M. Rahman, "Magnetic Resonance Imaging and Iron-oxide Nanoparticles in the era of Personalized Medicine," 2023. ncbi.nlm.nih.gov
- 378.M. Rahman, "Magnetic resonance imaging and iron-oxide nanoparticles in the era of personalized medicine," Nanotheranostics, 2023. nih.gov
- 379.M. Rahman, "Magnetic resonance imaging in personalized medicine," Metabolomics, 2023. [HTML]
- 380.S. Salih, A. Elliyanti, A. Alkatheeri, F. AlYafei, "The role of molecular imaging in personalized medicine," *Personalized Medicine*, vol. 2023, pp. 1-12, 2023. mdpi.com
- 381.H. Bhuskute, P. Shende, and B. Prabhakar, "3D printed personalized medicine for cancer: applications for betterment of diagnosis, prognosis and treatment," AAPS PharmSciTech, 2021. [HTML]
- 382.B. Shrestha, L. Tang, and R. L. Hood, "Nanotechnology for personalized medicine," Nanomedicine, 2023. [HTML]
- 383.G. B. Bilgin, C. Bilgin, B. J. Burkett, J. J. Orme, "Theranostics and artificial intelligence: new frontiers in personalized medicine," 2024. nih.gov

384.H. Moorthy and T. Govindaraju, "Dendrimer architectonics to treat cancer and neurodegenerative diseases with implications in theranostics and personalized medicine," ACS Applied Bio Materials, 2021. [HTML]